Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council

Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid l%}?Bllte
COUNCIL

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Corporate Services
Director: Nigel Stewart

27 February 2009

NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the MEMBERS ROOM, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 6 MARCH 2009 at 11:00 AM, which you are requested to attend.

Nigel Stewart
Director of Corporate Services

BUSINESS
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

3. MINUTES
Audit Committee 12 December 2008 (Pages 1 - 6)

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE - SELF ASSESSMENT EXERCISE
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 7 - 20)

5. AUDIT COMMITTEE - DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 21 - 24)

6. INTERNAL REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008 - 2009
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 25 - 48)

7. AUDIT SCOTLAND NATIONAL REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008 - 2009
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 49 - 66)

8. EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP 2008 - 2009
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 67 - 86)

9. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008 - 2009
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 87 - 90)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2009 - 2010
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 91 - 104)

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTS
Report by Chief Executive’s Unit (Pages 105 - 108)

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
Verbal report from Chair and Vice Chair of Audit Committee on their meeting with
the Chief Executive

RISK MANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY STRATEGY
Report by Governance and Risk Manager (Pages 109 - 110)

AUDIT PLAN 2008/2009
Report by Grant Thornton UK LLP, External Auditors (Pages 111 - 130)

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2008 - 2009 (IFRS REPORT)
Report by Head of Strategic Finance (Pages 131 - 132)

IFRS
Presentation on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Councillor Gordon Chalmers Councillor Mary-Jean Devon
Councillor Roderick McCuish Councillor Andrew Nisbet
lan M M Ross Christopher Valentine

Contact: Fiona McCallum Tel. No. 01546 604406



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

MINUTES of MEETING of the AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the MEMBERS ROOM, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD
on FRIDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2008

Present: Mr lan M M Ross (Chair)
Councillor Mary Jean Devon Councillor Andrew Nisbet
Councillor Gordon Chalmers Dr Christopher Valentine

Councillor Roderick McCuish

Attending: Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance
lain Jackson, Governance and Risk Manager
lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager
Moira Weatherstone, Trainee Accountant
David Clements, Performance Manager
Gary Devlin, Grant Thorton UK LLP, External Auditors

Apology: Councillor Bruce Marshall

The Chair welcomed Councillor Andrew Nisbet to his first meeting of the Audit
Committee and took the opportunity of thanking Councillor Ron Simon for his
contribution to the Committee over the last year.

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None declared.
2. MINUTES

The Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 19 September 2008 were
approved as a correct record.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE SELF REVIEW AND WORK PLAN

Grant Thornton UK LLP, External Auditors, recently evaluated the extent to
which the Council’s Audit Committee arrangements complied with the principles
set out in the CIPFA guidance of 2004 entitled “Audit Committee principles in
local authorities in Scotland: a guidance note” and found that the Audit
Committee operated effectively and complied with the majority of good practice
principles outlined in the CIPFA guide. Grant Thornton UK LLP provided
recommendations in their resultant Interim Management Report of 30 September
2008 and identified areas of development for the Audit Committee namely, self
assessment and the establishment of an annual work plan. A report setting out
a self assessment checklist and work plan framework for the Audit Committee
was considered.

Decision

1. To agree to consider further the work and training plan, terms of reference
and self assessment exercise at a separate meeting out with the cycle of



Page 2

Audit Committee meetings, to be arranged by the Head of Strategic Finance
and facilitated by KPMG;

2. To agree that a draft of the Audit Committee Annual report will be
considered by the Committee at their June meeting with the final report
submitted to their September meeting for approval; and

3. To note that arrangements had still to be finalised for a visit to East
Renfrewshire Audit Committee.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager, submitted)

AUDIT SCOTLAND NATIONAL REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008-2009
Audit Scotland issued an Accounts Commission report in November 2008
entitled “The impact of the race equality duty on council services”. The key
messages from this national report were before the Committee for consideration.

Decision

To note the contents of the report and that these will be followed up by Internal
Audit.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager, submitted)
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE

A report detailing report summaries and action plans for finalised audit work was
before the Committee for consideration.

Decision

1. To note the contents of the report and that these will be followed up by
Internal Audit; and

2. To note that the report on tendering will be brought to a future meeting of the
Committee.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager, submitted)
AUDIT COMMITTEE DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE

Grant Thornton UK LLP, External Auditors, recently evaluated the extent to
which the Council’s Audit Committee arrangements complied with the principles
set out in the CIPFA guidance of 2004 entitled “Audit Committee principles in
local authorities in Scotland: a guidance note”. The evaluation determined that
although the Audit Committee Terms of Reference presently met many of the
best practice guidelines set out under CIPFA guidance, further improvements
could be made. A report introducing draft Terms of Reference for review was
considered.

Decision



Page 3

To agree the Audit Committee’s draft Terms of Reference attached to the
report subject to the following amendments and to request the Director of
Corporate Services to include these in the revised Council Constitution to go
to the Council for approval:-

(a) that a section on Performance should be included in the Terms of
Reference and that under this section the following statement should be
added — “To promote good management practice within the Council”;

(b) To amend paragraph 4 under the Regulatory Framework section to read
“To oversee the production of the Council’'s Statement of Internal
Control”; and

2. To agree that the Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually by the

Committee.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager, submitted)

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT QUARTERLY REPORT

A report providing a summary of the Service quarterly reports for the period July
to September 2008, consisting of exceptional performance sections only was
considered.

Decision

1.

To note the contents of the report and that a further report will be brought to
the next meeting of the Committee;

To note that the Personnel Services report referred to under the section
headed up Chief Executive’s Unit, had been received and that there were no
exception reports; and

To note that the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee will be meeting with
the Chief Executive in the New Year to discuss performance management
and that the outcome of this meeting will be reported to the next meeting of
the Committee.

(Reference: Report by Policy and Strategy Manager dated 2 December 2008,
submitted)

PYRAMID PROGRESS REPORT

A report advising on progress with the implementation of the performance
management system, Pyramid, was considered.

Decision

1.

2.

To note the progress to date with the implementation of Pyramid; and

To agree to invite the Head of Strategic HR to the next meeting of the Audit
Committee to advise on progress with implementing the new reporting
mechanism for absence monitoring.



10.

11.

12.

Page 4

(Reference: Report by Chief Executive’s Unit, submitted)

EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP 2008-2009

The Committee considered a report detailing the results from a review performed
by Internal Audit on recommendations due to be implemented by 30 September
2008.

Decision

To note the contents of the report and that these will be followed up by Internal
Audit.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 19 November 2008,
submitted)

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008-2009

A report advising on progress with the Annual Audit Plan for 2008-2009 was
considered.

Decision

To approve the progress made with the Annual Audit Plan for 2008-2009.
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager, submitted)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY STRATEGY

A presentation and report updating the Committee on progress being made with
the implementation of the Council’'s Risk Management and Business Continuity
Strategy was considered.

Decision

1. To note the contents of the report and thank the Governance and Risk
Manager for his very interesting and informative presentation; and

2. To note that the Audit Committee will be invited to observe the testing of the
departmental recovery plans in the New Year.

(Reference: Report by Governance and Risk Manager dated 28 November 2008,
submitted)

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2007-2008

The external auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, have completed their audit of the
Council’'s accounts for the year to 31 March 2008. The audited accounts
incorporating the audit certificate and the external audit report for 2007-2008
were before the Council for consideration on 27 November 2008. The audit
certificate contained no qualifications and external audit highlighted key issues
for the attention of Members.



Page 5

Decision

1. To note the audited accounts, the terms of the audit certificate and the
external audit report;

2. To agree to continue to monitor the action plans agreed in the response to
the individual audit reports that have been issued during the year;

3. To note that the Head of Strategic Finance will prepare a report for the next
meeting of the Committee advising on the steps being taken by the Council
to move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the
implications of this move;

4. To note that Gary Devlin will arrange to provide to the Audit Committee the
key highlights of the External Auditors IFRS training event.

(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance dated 4 November 2008,
Report on the 2007-08 Audit dated 31 October 2008 and Accounts for the period
1 April 2007 — 31 March 2008, submitted)



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 6 MARCH 2009

AUDIT COMMITTEE - SELF ASSESSMENT EXERCISE

1. SUMMARY

Grant Thornton UK LLP (External Audit) recently evaluated the extent to which
the Council's Audit Committee arrangements complied with the principles set
out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
guidance. The review concluded that although the Audit Committee presently
met many of the best practice principles, further improvements could be made.
Grant Thornton UK LLP provided recommendations in their resultant Interim
Management Report of the 30" September 2008, identifying development
areas in self assessment and the establishment of an annual work plan. A
report setting out a self assessment checklist and work plan framework were
presented to the Audit Committee in December 2008. It was agreed to consider
a self assessment exercise at a separate meeting out with the cycle of Audit
Committee meetings. Set out in Appendix 1 is a proposed template of activities
and issues for consideration prior to the exercise.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Audit Committee formally considers the proposed self assessment
day activity and issues template.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 Atthe last Audit Committee it was requested that a day be arranged for a
self assessment exercise to take place.

3.2 Attached in Appendix 1 is an activity and issues template which may be
useful to the Audit Committee in planning the self assessment day.

3.3 The template covers activities and issues that should be addressed prior
to the self assessment exercise. It also provides a list of background
support components for the self assessment with key questions.

3.4 The template has been passed to internal audit partners KPMG UK LLP
for consideration after which dates for the exercise will be presented.

4, CONCLUSION

4.1  The activities and issues template attached in Appendix 1 provides a
framework for the Audit Committee members to consider in planning their
self assessment day.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: Strengthening control systems

52 Financial: None



Page 8

5.3 Personnel: None
54 Legal: None
5.5 Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604216) 26janfinalreport26jan



Page 9

AUDIT COMMITTEE — SELF ASSESSMENT

CHECKLIST

Priority

Issue

Yes

No

N/A

Comments/Actions

Role and remit

Does the audit committee
have written terms of
reference?

Do the terms of reference
cover the core functions of an
audit committee as

identified in the CIPFA
guidance?

Are the terms of reference
approved by the council and
reviewed periodically?

Does the audit committee
have sufficient membership,
authority/power and
resources to perform its role
effectively and
independently?

Can the audit committee
access other committees and
full council as necessary?

Does the Council

statement on internal control
include a description of the
audit committee’s

role and activities?

Does the audit committee
assess its own
effectiveness?

Does the audit committee
make a formal annual report
on its work and performance
during the year to the full
Council?

Membership, induction
and training

Has the membership of the
audit committee been
formally agreed and a
quorum set?

Is the chair independent of
the executive function?

Has the audit committee
chair either previous
knowledge of, or received
appropriate training on,
financial and risk
management, accounting
concepts and standards, and
the regulatory regime?

Are new audit committee
members provided with
appropriate induction
training?

Have all members’ skills and
experiences been assessed
and training given for any
gaps identified?




Page 10

Priority | Issue Yes | No | N/A Comments/Actions
1 Has each member declared

his or her business interests?
2 Are members sufficiently

independent of other key
committees of the council?

Meetings

1 Does the audit committee
meet regularly?

1 Do the terms of reference set
out the frequency of
meetings?

1 Does the audit committee
calendar meet the Council’'s
business, governance needs
and the financial calendar?

1 Are members attending
meetings on a regular basis
and if not, is appropriate
action taken?

1 Are meetings free and open
without political influences
being displayed?

1 Does the Council’s Section 95
officer or deputy attend all
meetings?

1 Does the audit committee

have the benefit of
attendance of appropriate
officers at its meetings?

INTERNAL CONTROL

1 Does the audit committee
consider the findings of the
annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of
internal control? Does this
include the review of the
effectiveness of internal
audit?

1 Does the audit committee
have responsibility for
review and approval of the
SIC and does it consider it
separately from the

accounts?

1 Does the audit committee
consider how meaningful the
SICis?

1 Does the audit committee

satisfy itself that the system
of internal control has
operated effectively
through out the financial
year?

1 Has the audit committee
considered how it integrates
with other committees that
may have responsibility for
risk management?




Page 11

Priority | Issue Yes | No | N/A Comments/Actions

1 Has the audit committee
(with delegated
responsibility) or the

full council adopted
“Managing the Risk of Fraud
— Actions to Counter Fraud
and Corruption?”

1 Does the audit committee
ensure that the “Actions to
Counter Fraud and
Corruption” are being
implemented?

2 Is the audit committee made
aware of the role of risk
management in the
preparation of the internal
audit plan?

2 Does the audit committee
review the Council’s strategic
risk register at least
annually?

2 Does the audit committee
monitor how the Council
assesses risk?

2 Do the audit committee’s
terms of reference include
oversight of the risk
management process?

FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND REGULATORY
MATTERS

1 Is the audit committee’s role
in the consideration

and/or approval of the
Council’s annual accounts
clearly defined?

1 Does the audit committee
consider specifically:

« the suitability of accounting
policies and treatments

» major judgements made
* large write-offs
 changes in accounting
treatment

- the reasonableness of
Accounting estimates the
narrative aspects of
reporting?

1 Is an audit committee
meeting scheduled to
receive the external
auditor’s report to those
charged with governance
including a discussion of
proposed adjustments to the
accounts and other issues
arising from the audit?

1 Does the audit committee
review management’s letter?




Page 12

Priority | Issue Yes | No | N/A Comments/Actions

2 Does the audit committee
annually review the
accounting policies of the
Council?

2 Does the audit committee
gain an understanding of
management’s procedures for
preparing the Council’s
annual accounts?

2 Does the audit committee
have a mechanism to keep it
aware of topical legal and
regulatory issues, for
example by receiving
circulars and through
training?

INTERNAL AUDIT

1 Does the audit committee
approve, annually and in
detail, the internal audit
strategic and annual

plans including consideration
of whether the scope of
internal audit work addresses
the Council’s significant
risks?

1 Does internal audit have an
appropriate reporting line to
the audit committee?

1 Does the audit committee
receive periodic reports from
internal audit including an
annual report?

1 Are follow-up audits by
internal audit monitored by
the audit committee and
does it consider the adequacy
of implementation of
recommendations?

1 Does the audit committee
hold periodic private
discussions with Internal
Audit?

1 Is there appropriate
co-operation between the
internal and external
auditors?

1 Does the audit committee
review the adequacy of
internal audit staffing and
other resources?

1 Has the audit committee
evaluated whether internal
audit complies with CIPFA’s
Code of Practice for Internal
audit in Local

Government in the United
Kingdom?




Page 13

Priority | Issue Yes | No | N/A Comments/Actions

2 Are internal audit
performance measures
monitored by the audit
committee?

2 Has the audit committee
considered the information it
wishes to receive from
internal audit?

EXTERNAL AUDIT

1 Do the external auditors
present and discuss their audit
plans and strategy with the
audit committee (recognising
the statutory duties of external
audit)?

1 Does the audit committee
hold periodic private
discussions with the external
auditor?

1 Does the audit committee
review the external auditor’s
annual report to those
charged with governance?

1 Does the audit committee
ensure that officers are
monitoring action taken to
implement external audit
recommendations?

1 Are reports on the work of
external audit and other
inspection agencies
presented to the committee,
including those produced by
Audit Scotland?

1 Does the audit committee
assess the performance of
external audit?

1 Does the audit committee
consider and approve the
external audit fee?

ADMINISTRATION
Agenda management

1 Does the audit committee
have a desighated secretary
From Committee/Member
Services?

1 Are agenda papers circulated
in advance of meetings to
allow adequate preparation
by audit committee
members?

2 Are outline agendas
planned one year ahead to
cover issues on a cyclical
basis?

2 Are inputs for Any Other
Business formally requested
in advance from

committee members,
relevant officers, internal and
external audit?




Page 14

Priority | Issue Yes | No | N/A Comments/Actions
Papers
1 Do reports to the audit

committee communicate
relevant information at the
right frequency, time, and in
a format that is effective?

2 Does the audit committee
issue guidelines and/or a
proforma concerning the
format and content of the
papers to be presented?

Actions arising

1 Are minutes prepared and
circulated promptly to the
appropriate people?

1 Is a report on matters arising
made and minuted at the
audit committee’s next
meeting?

1 Do action points indicate who
is to perform what and by
when?




APPENDIX 2

WORK PLAN
Audit Responsibility Areas of the Audit Committee
Committee Audit Audit Audit Anti- Fraud & Corporate
MDeaettégg Committee | Committee | Committee Internal Audit External Audit ;'stk Perfc;,:'n:ance Corruption Governance Accounts
option 1 option 2 option 3 gt gt. Arrangements | Arrangements
March
- Audit -Work and | -Consider internal -Consider Quarterly | Quarterly -Annual report Review
Committee Training audit annual audit external audit update update report. | on the National work plan
Annual Plan. plan. annual audit plan. | report. Fraud Initiative. for
Report. - Terms of | -Consider follow up | -Consider -Annual completion
reference. of external and external audit Review of Anti of annual
- Self internal action progress against Fraud and accounts.
Review. points. plan. Corruption
-Consider IA - Consider Arrangements.
(A work progress against external audit
day to plan. reports.
carry out -Consider |1A U
the above reports. Q)
named (@
tasks) @
June -
- Audit - Audit - Report on the -Interim audit Quarterly | Quarterly Annual Review | Review Review of '
Committee | Committee | year. work review. update update report. | of Fraud Statements of un-audited
Annual Annual -Consider follow up | - Consider report. Results across | Control. accounts.
Report. Report. of external and external audit the Council.
-Work and internal action progress against
Training points. plan.
Plan. - Consider 1A - Consider
- Terms of progress against external audit
reference. plan. reports.
- Self - Consider |IA
Review. reports.
September
- Self -Private meeting -ISA260 Report. Quarterly | Quarterly Review of
Review. with Internal audit. -Private meeting update update report audited
- Terms of -Consider follow up | with external report annual
reference. of external and audit. accounts
internal action - Consider
points. external audit




Audit

Responsibility Areas of the Audit Committee

Committee Audit Audit Audit Anti- Fraud & Corporate
MDeaettégg Committee | Committee | Committee Internal Audit External Audit ;'gstk Perfc;,:'g:ance Corruption Governance Accounts
option 1 option 2 option 3 ) ) Arrangements | Arrangements
- Consider |IA progress against
progress against plan.
plan. - Consider
- Consider IA external audit
reports. reports.
December
-Work and Consider follow up | -Annual audit Quarterly | Quarterly Annual Report
Training of internal action report. - Consider | update update report on Corporate
Plan points. external audit report Governance
-Consider I1A progress against
progress against plan. -Consider
plan. external audit
-Consider IA reports
reports. ¢

91 abed



APPENDIX 2
TRAINING PLAN

IDENTIFICATION OF AREAS FOR FUTURE TRAINING

The Audit Committee in complying with CIPFA guidelines will need to identify, prioritise, assess, scope and plan out a programme to achieve
their training needs. This will be informed by identifying key tasks that the Audit Committee have to annually undertake. To assist the Audit
Committee determine their future training needs, set out below are key tasks that have to be addressed annually.

Annual report — This will list key issues that need to be addressed over the year;

Terms of Reference — This may identify training needs to remain compliant with CIPFA guidance;

Work plan — The work plan set out above covers key themes that may identify Member training requirements; and
Self assessment - The annual exercise will identify issues where knowledge could be enhanced through training.

TRAINING PLAN (EXAMPLE FORMAT)

“At a self assessment meeting of the Audit Committee on the .......... , Members considered potential areas of interest/ focus which are detailed
within the above work programme. In addition, training requirements were also identified and these are set out in the accompanying Training
Plan as follows”:

AUDIT COMMITTEE - TRAINING PLAN 2008 - 2009

PRIORITY TRAINING NEED IDENTIFIED PROVIDER ACTION DATE
LEVEL1or2

/| ebed




Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT COMMITTEE SELF ASSESSMENT EXERCISE — ACTIVITIES AND ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

Issues to be considered prior to the Self Assessment exercise

Issues for consideration To be discussed Main output checklist
Terms Of Reference - for information Areas of interest/concern. Agreed self assessment
Visit to East Renfrewshire Council view for What are we hoping to get from the day? Work Plan

information gathering and comparison

Key Issue identification Prioritise key issues pertinent to Council Training Plan

Corporate Objectives/Performance Indicators
and then consider what needs to be done to
address them.

2007-08 Report — for information

Input from others on ourselves. Work and Training Plan

Self Assessment - Complete questionnaire

What to do about the issues that have arisen. | Work and Training Plan

Background support for self assessment exercise

New Audit Committee Terms of Reference.

e Review work plan.

Visit to East Renfrewshire Council in February.

¢ |dentify development issues.

Carry out Self Review/Self Assessment

e Discuss/prepare training plan.

61 abed



Key questions that should be asked prior to the self assessment exercise

e \What areas do we need to focus on?

e \What outcomes are there from self assessment?

e Do we need support from others and if so what type and level of support?

e How can we develop in order to build on our present compliance with the good practice principles outlined by CIPFA?

¢ Do we need to review the risk management process and risk register alignment to the existing corporate governance
structure?

e Do we review the assurance framework in total - internal controls; risk management framework; compliance; internal /
external audit?

e Do we need to gauge the responsiveness of the Council to the current economic climate and relevant areas of particular
attention, to gain some warning of issues appearing?

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance
27 January 2009

misc/auditcommawayday

0z abed



Page 21 Agenda Item 5

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 6 MARCH 2009

AUDIT COMMITTEE - DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE.

1. SUMMARY

In compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Financial Accountants
(CIPFA) guidance, a draft Terms of Reference (TOR) was presented to the Audit
Committee in December 2008 for review. The Audit Committee decided that
further amendments should be made and this report introduces an updated draft
TOR for the Audit Committee to review. The Director of Corporate Services is
currently revising the Council Constitution to go to Council for approval and the
Audit Committee have requested that the revised TOR be included. (See
Appendix 1)

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Toreview and agree the draft TOR and request the Director of Corporate
Services to pick these up during the forthcoming Review of Political
Management Arrangements.

3. DETAILS

3.1 The Audit Committee in December 2008 decided that the draft TOR should
recognise its responsibility in discharging performance functions. A section
has therefore been added in response to this decision.

3.2 The draft TOR for the Audit Committee reflects the guidance, “Audit
Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities”, produced by
CIPFA. In addition, reference was made to the TOR for the Audit
Committee agreed by Council on 17 May 2007 and issues raised by Grant
Thornton UK LLP in their Interim Management Report of September 2008.

3.3 The draft TOR more clearly defines the role and responsibilities of the
Audit Committee and follows current guidance as set out by CIPFA.

CONCLUSIONS

4.
The attached draft TOR will be monitored, updated and presented for
approval on an annual basis.

5. IMPLICATIONS

5.1  Policy: None



Page 22

5.2  Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None
54 Legal: None
5.5 Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604216) 18febfinalreport18feb



Page 23
APPENDIX 1

ARGYLL and BUTE COUNCIL

DRAFT
Audit Committee — Terms of Reference

The Committee’s terms of reference are generally to promote good internal
control, financial risk and governance, in order to provide reasonable
assurance of effective and efficient operation, and compliance with laws and
regulations, including the Council’s Financial and Security Regulations,
Contract Standing Orders and accounting codes of practice.

The specific terms of reference are as follows —

Audit Activity

To agree the internal audit strategic plan, oversee and review action taken
on internal audit recommendations;

To consider the annual report, opinion, and summary of Internal Audit
activity (actual and proposed) including the level of assurance it can give
over the Council’s corporate governance arrangements and other specific
internal audit reports;

To consider the External Auditor’'s Annual Letter, relevant reports, and the
report to those charged with governance and other specific External Audit
reports;

To comment on the scope and depth of External Audit work and to ensure
it gives value for money;

To commission work from Internal and External Audit;

To consider the performance of Internal and External Audit;

To provide training to support the role of audit committee members;

To develop an anti-fraud culture within the Council to ensure the highest
standards of probity and public accountability;

To promote good financial practice within the Council;

To be consulted on the External Audit strategy and plan, review reports
from the Council’s External Advisors and review action on External Audit
recommendations; and

To review the Council’s financial performance as contained in the Annual
Report, and to report annually to the Council on the internal control
environment.

Regulatory Framework

To maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution in respect of contract
procedure rules, and financial regulations;

To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management
and corporate governance in the Council;

To monitor the Anti fraud and corruption strategy and the Council’s
arrangements for dealing with any allegations of fraud or similar improper
behaviour;

To oversee the production of the Council’s Statement on Internal Control;
and

To consider the Council’'s compliance with its own and other published
standards and controls.



Page 24
APPENDIX 1

Accounts

To examine the activities and accounts of the Council and exercise a
governance role over management efforts to ensure that;

(a) the expenditure approved by the Council has been incurred for the
purposes intended;

(b) services are being provided efficiently and effectively;

(c) value for money is being obtained, all in accordance with Best Value
requirements; and

(d) the Council/Executive has appropriate information and advice available
to them to make decisions.

To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically to consider
whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether
there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit
that need to be brought to the attention of the Council; and

To consider the External Auditor's report to those charged with
governance on issues arising from the audit of the accounts.

Performance

To promote good performance management practice within the Council;
To be assured that the Council's performance management systems
operate effectively;

To regularly review outputs from the Council's performance management
system;

To consider performance and inspection reports from internal audit,
external audit and other relevant agencies;

To commission specific performance reviews to be carried out where
necessary;

To review Best Value arrangements and outcomes, with consideration of
both external and internal Best Value reports, strategy/plans and
outcomes from Best Value reviews;

To overview key performance indicator outcomes, including quarterly
service performance reporting and Statutory Performance Indicator
outcomes;

To comment on proposals for developing a performance management
framework, systems and processes; and

To review the impact of national performance reports from external bodies
such as Audit Scotland and consider their impact on future audit plans for
performance work to be undertaken by both external and internal audit.



Page 25 Agenda ltem 6

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 6 MARCH 2009

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008 - 2009

1. SUMMARY
The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (the Code) issued by
CIPFA in 2000 sets out good practice in delivering internal audit services. The
Code was revised in 2006 and Grant Thornton UK LLP, in May 2007 carried out
a Code compliance review resulting in a report. One resultant recommendation
required that internal audit reports be reported to the Audit Committee. Attached
are final report summaries and action plans from recent audits to be submitted to
the March Audit Committee. See Appendix 1 to 2.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal
Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1 Set out below and in the attached Appendices are the Executive
Summaries and Action Plans where applicable from finalised audit work.
The Action Plans detail only those recommendations where Internal Audit
in agreement with management have classified the findings either
Fundamental or Material. Therefore Minor findings and recommendations
have been removed. The contents of this report will therefore complement
the External & Internal Audit Follow Up report provided to the Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis.

3.2 Attached for the Audit Committee are 2 final reports completed in this
reporting period for core and non financial systems audits:
e Corporate Governance; and
e Catering Procurement.
(See Appendices 1 to 2).

4, CONCLUSIONS

The Audit Committee is requested to note the contents of this report.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
5.2  Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None
54 Legal: None

5.5 Equal Opportunities: None



Page 26

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604216).12febfinalreport12feb



Page 27

APPENDIX 1

Argyll

seBute

COUNCIL

Internal Audit Report

FINAL

CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Review of Corporate Governance

December 2008

Prepared by: Charles M. Soane B.Com., C.A.

Reviewed by: lan Nisbet MBA MSc ACMA MIIA



Page 28

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

CONTENTS
Page
1.  CONTENTS 1
2. BACKGROUND 2
3. AuDIT ScoPE AND OBJECTIVES 2
4 AUDIT APPROACH 2
5.  DETAILED FINDINGS 3
6  CONCLUSION AND ASSESSMENT AGAINST OBJECTIVES 6
7.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 6
ACTION PLAN APPENDIX 1
EXAMPLE TIMETABLE APPENDIX 2

Page 1



Page 29

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

3.1

BACKGROUND

This report has been prepared as a result of the Internal Audit review of Corporate
Governance as part of the 2008/2009 Internal Audit programme.

Governance in local government is currently defined by CIPFA/SOLACE and the
Audit Commission as follows:

‘Governance is how local government bodies ensure that they are doing the right
things, in the right way, for the right people in a timely inclusive, open, honest and
accountable manner. It comprises the systems and processes for the direction and
control of local authorities through which they account to, engage with and lead their
communities.’

CIPFA and SOLACE published a revised Framework for ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government’ in 2007. The Framework was intended to define
the principles that should underpin the governance of local authorities and provides a
structure to assist authorities with their own approach to governance. The Framework
has taken the six core principles, from the ‘Good Governance Standard for Public
Services’ (2004), and adapted these principles for local government, identifying
eighteen supporting principles.

Guidance notes covering England & Wales were issued in 2007 with the revised
framework, but it wasn’t until May 2008 that a CIPFA/Solace guidance note for
Scottish Local Authorities was published. This identified fifty four local code
requirements underlying the principles.

The Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 placed a statutory duty of Best Value on
local authorities. It has been suggested that Audit Scotland’s reports on Best Value
audits of Local Authorities indicate that those authorities that have made limited
progress with Best Value overall have important governance issues to address, and it
is these issues which are limiting their ability to improve.

AUDIT SCOPE AND OBJECTIVES

The objective of this review is to:-

e Ascertain the council’s current arrangements for monitoring Corporate
Governance, and

e Assess the impact of the new CIPFA Corporate Governance Framework and
Guidance Note for Scottish Authorities on this Council

AUDIT APPROACH

The current arrangements for preparing the Statement on the System of Internal
Financial Control in the Annual Financial Statements were reviewed

Page 2



Page 30

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

3.2

3.3

3.4

41

The current arrangements for Corporate Governance were reviewed in relation to:-
o the Framework for Delivering Good Governance in Local Government, and
e the Guidance Note for Scottish Authorities

A draft report was compiled after issues identified from the review were discussed
with the Governance & Risk Manager and the Head of Strategic Finance.

The framework is at an early stage of development and an Action Plan is included
with this report highlighting some of the key issues that are currently being
addressed.

DETAILED FINDINGS & RECOMMENDATIONS

Legislative Framework

Scottish authorities are required by the local authority Statement of Recommended
Practice (‘SORP’) to include a statement of internal financial control with their Annual
Accounts. However, the more recent CIPFA framework document Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government recommends that the review of effectiveness of the
system of internal control should be reported in an annual governance statement.

Audit Scotland have subsequently released a Technical Bulletin 2008/2 in June 2008
clarifying that authorities are encouraged (but not required) to include an annual
governance statement with their accounts instead of the option to include a statement
of internal control.

Recommendation:

Argyll & Bute have included a statement of internal financial control with their 2007/08
Annual Accounts, while certain Scottish authorities are already including an annual
governance statement. In determining when the authority includes an annual
governance statement with the accounts, consideration must be given to the existing
governance arrangements and any necessary changes that would need to be made
to fully comply with the new framework.

Refer to Action Plan No 1

4.2 Statement on System of Financial Control

The statement on the system of financial control in the accounts includes the other
bodies whose activities are incorporated in the Group Accounts, i.e.

o Strathclyde Joint Police Board
o Strathclyde Fire and Rescue Board
o Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Board

Page 3



Page 31

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

o Strathclyde Partnership for Transport
o Strathclyde Concessionary Travel Scheme Joint Committee
o Argyll, Bute & the Dunbartonshires’ Criminal Justice Social Work Partnership

The review of the effectiveness of the system is carried out by the Head of Strategic
Finance, placing reliance on:-

o the work of Directors and managers within the Council

J the work of Internal Audit within the Council and the above named bodies

. the work of the Audit Committee as set out in their Annual Report to the
Council

. the External Audit annual audit letter and other reports

o the statements of Internal Control provided by the above named bodies

This is the first year that the Audit Committee have prepared a report to the Council,
in response to a recommendation by External Audit, Grant Thornton UK LLP arising
from a compliance review with the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local
Government.

Within their report, the Audit Committee express an opinion that the Council has good
arrangements for Corporate Governance and has adopted the principles of Good
Governance. This is based on their work during the year together with a formal
identification of the codes within the Council Constitution, reports and other
documentation which support the following dimensions of the Council’s business:

e Community Focus

e Service Delivery Arrangements

e Structures and Processes

¢ Risk Management and Internal Control
e Standards of Conduct

This report has been framed in terms of the CIPFA Template Code of Corporate
Governance issued in 2002 and the Audit Committee’s 2008/09 report will require to
be updated to reflect the updated six core principles, and supporting principles
identified in the Framework for Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.

Recommendation:

An annual review of the governance arrangements should be carried out by Internal
Audit, in support of the opinion being expressed by the Audit Committee.

Refer to Action Plan No 2

Page 4



Page 32

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

4.3

4.4

The Framework for Good Governance in Local Government

The Framework document is intended to be followed as best practice for developing
and maintaining a local code of governance and making adopted practices open and
explicit. At present the Council does not have a formalised local code of governance
although many of the constituent parts are included within the Council Constitution,
the Corporate Plan 2007-2011 and beyond, and the Risk Management Strategy.

To achieve good governance the Council needs to demonstrate that it is complying
with the core and supporting principles contained in the Framework. Progress has
been made by the Corporate Governance & Risk Manager, with assistance from
Internal Audit, in developing a local Corporate Governance Framework appropriate to
the Council’s circumstances. However, further work will be required to ensure that
underlying documents that form part of the framework are current and being kept
under regular review.

Recommendation

The framework should be completed within the timescales for the 2008/2009
Accounts, to support the statement of Internal Control prepared by the Audit
Committee. See Appendix 2 where an example timetable is provided, listing key
events/milestones. Responsible officers should be nominated, who have appropriate
knowledge, expertise and levels of seniority to assist with the preparation and initial
review of the framework. Thereafter, the framework must be maintained and updated
on a regular basis. There is already a similar structure for risk management.

Refer to Action Plan No 3

Self Assessment

The Guidance for Scottish Local Authorities provides for self assessment of the Local
Authority governance arrangements. The local Code developed by the Council
should have examples of systems, processes and documentation to demonstrate
compliance with the principles, along with a self evaluation, the results from which
will form the basis of an improvement plan.

In addition, the Council will need to demonstrate, through documentary evidence and
action, that its governance arrangements meet the criteria set out in the Framework.
In order that this is not seen as a box ticking exercise, the guidance suggests scoring
the authority’s arrangements on a scale of 1 to 4.

Recommendation

The Council must determine an appropriate structure and assign responsibility for
formally assessing the governance arrangements and preparing an improvement
plan to accord with the principles of Best Value and the anticipated self assessment
regime under the Single Outcome agreements. This is likely to involve the Section 95

Page 5



Page 33

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

6.1

6.2

6.3

Officer, the Monitoring Officer, and representatives from performance, audit and risk,
with subsequent referral to the Executive and the Audit Committee.

Refer to Action Plan No 4

OVERALL CONCLUSION AND ASSESSMENT AGAINST OBJECTIVES

The Guidelines for Delivering Good Governance in Local Government have been
published at a time of significant change within local government in Scotland. The
introduction of proportional representation has resulted in many Scottish Councils
having no overall control by one political party. In addition, the Single Outcome
agreements concluded between the Scottish Government and each Council has
enhanced the need for high standards of governance, to demonstrate that the
principles of Best Value and Accountability have been adopted.

The Guidance Note for Scottish Authorities is aimed at assisting authorities in:

e considering how they might go about reviewing their governance
arrangements

e developing and updating their own local code of governance

e demonstrating compliance with the principles of good governance.

The Council are progressing preparation of a local code but require to determine
appropriate arrangements to review, maintain and update this on a regular basis.
The framework should be reviewed on an annual basis by Internal Audit in support of
the Audit Committee Annual Report and consideration should be given to replacing
the Statement on the System of Internal Control with an Annual Governance
Statement in the Annual Accounts for 2009/2010.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Thanks are due to the Governance & Risk Manager for his co-operation and
assistance during the Audit and the preparation of the report.

Argyll & Bute Council’s internal audit section has prepared this report. Our work was
limited to the scope in section 2 of this report. We cannot be held responsible or
liable if information material to our task was withheld or concealed from us, or
misrepresented to us.

This report is private and confidential for the Council’s information only and is solely
for use in the provision of an internal audit service to the Council. The report is not to
be copied, quoted or referred to, in whole or in part, without prior written consent.

Page 6



ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

APPENDIX 1 ACTION PLAN
No. FINDINGS PRIORITY RECOMMENDATION RESPONSIBLE IMPLEMENTATION DATE
OFFICER

1 In determining when the Following completion of the
authority includes an annual initial framework for the Head of Strategic June 2009
governance statement with 2008/09 Accounts, the Finance
the accounts, consideration resultant action plan should be
must be given to the existing reviewed to determine the
governance arrangements High timescale for preparing an
and any necessary changes annual governance statement.
that would need to be made
to fully comply with the new
framework.
The framework should be An outline plan for the

2 | completed within the development of the initial Governance & Risk December 2008
timescales for the 2008/2009 framework should be prepared Manager
Accounts, to support the High determining appropriate
statement of Internal Control resource requirements and key
prepared by the Audit reporting dates.
Committee.
Responsible officers should Arrangements for preparing

3 be nominated, who have and maintaining the framework | Governance & Risk January 2009

appropriate knowledge,
expertise and levels of
seniority to review, maintain High
and update the framework on
a regular basis. There is
already a similar structure for
risk management.

should be formalised with the
nominated responsible officers
being reflected on the
framework.

Manager

Page 1

¢ abed



ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

No. FINDINGS PRIORITY RECOMMENDATION RESPONSIBLE IMPLEMENTATION DATE
OFFICER

4 Responsibility must be Proposed responsibility and
assigned for formally arrangements for formally Head of Strategic January 2009
assessing the governance assessing the governance Finance
arrangements and preparing arrangements, together with
an improvement plan to the preparation of an
accord with the principles of improvement plan should be
Best Value and the High submitted to the SMT for

Outcome agreements.

anticipated self assessment
regime under the Single

approval.

Page 2

Gg abed



Page 36

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2008-09

APPENDIX 2

Nov. 2008

Dec. 2008

January 2009

Dec.2008 -
Mar.2009

April 2009

May/June 2009

June —
Dec. 2009

Jan. 2010

Mar. 2010

April 2010

May 2010

May 2010

EXAMPLE TIMETABLE

Outline Framework Prepared

Meeting to determine Council requirements & responsibilities

Report proposed arrangements to SMT

Develop local code & framework

Framework and Improvement Plan Report to SMT

Framework and Improvement Plan Report to Executive & Audit

Committee

Action improvement plan

Progress Report to SMT

Review and assess adequacy of Framework for Corporate Governance

Statement in accounts

Framework and Improvement Plan Report to SMT

Framework and Improvement Plan Report to Audit Committee

Governance Statement to Executive for Approval for signature

Page 1



Page 37

Argyll & Bute Council
Review of Operational Services — Catering Procurement

APPENDIX 2

Argyll

ssBute

COUNCIL

Internal Audit Report

FINAL
OPERATIONAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
Review of Catering Procurement

JANUARY 2009



Page 38

Argyll & Bute Council
Review of Operational Services — Catering Procurement

INDEX

SECTION PAGE

Introduction

Audit Scope and Objectives

Risk Assessment

Corporate Governance

Main Findings

Recommendations

Audit Opinion

WWWIN NN —=|—

0N~ WD —

Acknowledgements

Appendix 1 | Detailed Findings

Appendix 2 | Action Plan

Appendix 3 | Supporting Information




Page 39

Argyll & Bute Council
Review of Operational Services — Catering Procurement

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.2

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared as a result of the Internal Audit review of the
Catering Procurement operations within Facility Services which are located
within the Operational Services Department. Specifically, the audit of
Catering Procurement replaces the planned audit of Catering Payroll set out
in the audit programme for 2008 — 2009. The Payroll audit will now be
undertaken in the next financial year, 2009 — 2010.

Facility Services provide a catering and cleaning service to the Council
headed by an Operations Manager and supported by a Project Officer, with
staff located at Argyll House, Dunoon and units throughout Argyll & Bute.
The catering service have regular contact with 68 schools, 3 leisure
establishments, 3 hostels and the restaurant facility located at Kilmory Head
Quarters.

The annual budgeted spend on provisions and food is approximately,
£1.190million. The service is delivered conforming to statutory requirements
set by government (e.g. Nutritional Requirements for Food and Drinks in
Schools Regulations 2008) and bodies like the Food Standards Agency.

The catering service supplies are procured using a number of annual
contracts. These cover groceries, frozen food, fruit and vegetables, butcher
meat, milk and bread and baking. Drinks, chocolate and confectionery are
incorporated within the grocery contract.

These contracts have been put in place through the auspices of the ABC
Buying Consortium which recently expanded to become Scotland Excel
with the intention of achieving even greater buying gains for public sector
bodies using this medium.

The brief for Internal Audit was to investigate ways in which the service
could reduce its administrative effort without losing control and enhance
procurement management information for decision making.

AUDIT SCOPE AND OBJECTIVES
The broad objectives of the review were to:

e Review current systems and procedures to establish whether there is
effective control of procurement of catering supplies; and

e |dentify alternative approaches to procurement in order to reduce the
level of administrative work at operating units, and improve the provision
of procurement management information.

In order to satisfy the above objectives the processes involved in the
procurement of catering supplies were reviewed for completeness and
accuracy of information, and as there was a management perception that
the implementation of a new grocery contract with Brakes through Scotland
Excel had resulted in significant problems, we particularly targeted in the
review the period pre and post introduction of the new contract.

1



Page 40

Argyll & Bute Council
Review of Operational Services — Catering Procurement

2.3

3.1

41

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

A desk top exercise was begun to look at procurement solutions that could
reduce administration and provide management with information to ensure
proper ordering of the relevant products at the right price.

GOOD PRACTICE GUIDANCE

The recently issued Scottish Procurement Policy Handbook published in
response to The Review of Public Procurement in Scotland provides an
overarching statement of the fundamental rules, behaviours and standards
applicable to public procurement in Scotland. The Handbook also refers to
the Scottish Procurement Competency Framework which has been
developed to complement staff development programmes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Catering and Procurement ensure that the Council meets all statutory
requirements in relation to the provision of food to children.

The Review of Public Procurement in Scotland recommended that public
sector organisations confirm annually that they comply with minimum
standards of governance and accountability for procurement.

MAIN FINDINGS

Since the commencement of the Scotland Excel Contract the Contract
Schedule has been updated by Scotland Excel on eight occasions. It is not
clear if all of these were issued to the client authorities at the time.

An analysis of the issued updates shows that 36% were related to the issue
of new product codes and 27% related to price increases. It was also noted
that 69% of the changes occurred in Schedules 7 and 8 being some 2
months after the contract start.

It was found that in excess of 40% of grocery product lines ordered were for
non core product lines.

In discussion with the e-procurement team it was explained that PECOS
was not considered an appropriate system for the procurement of catering
supplies. Other possibilities had been considered in particular a Purchasing
Card option but this remained at an early stage.

ACTION PLAN and RECOMMENDATIONS

The action plan attached at Appendix 2 has been compiled with the co-
operation and agreement of management.

Internal Audit considers that, in an effort to improve the quality of
2



Page 41

Argyll & Bute Council
Review of Operational Services — Catering Procurement

6.3

information, monitoring and control, the recommendations should be
implemented in accordance with the agreed action plan. Management have
set achievable implementation dates and will be required to provide
reasons to the Audit Committee for failure to implement within the agreed
timescale. Where management decides not to implement recommendations
it must evaluate and accept the risks associated with that decision.

A system of grading audit findings, which have resulted in an action, has
been adopted in order that the significance of the findings can be
ascertained. Each finding is classified as fundamental, material or minor.
The definitions for each classification are set out below:-

High - observations on high level controls and other important internal
controls. Significant matters relating to factors critical to the success of
the objectives of the system. The weakness may therefore give rise to
loss or error;

Medium - observations on less important internal controls, improvements
to the efficiency and effectiveness of controls which will assist in meeting
the objectives of the system and items which could be significant in the
future. The weakness is not necessarily great, but the risk of error would
be significantly reduced it if were rectified;

Low — Observations to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of
controls, one-off items subsequently corrected. The weakness does not
appear to affect the ability of the system to meet its objectives in any
significant way.

6.4

One recommendation of high priority was identified as a result of the audit.
The recommendations are shown in the action plan set out in Appendix 2
and supporting information is provided in Appendix 3.

7 AUDIT OPINION

7.1

7.2

8.1

Based on the findings we can conclude that the controls in place in respect
of Catering Procurement procedures are under strain due to administrative
pressures. We further believe that these pressures existed previously but
have been and will continue to be exacerbated as new expanded contracts
are put in place.

Recommendations arising from the audit work should be implemented by
the nominated responsible officer within the agreed timescale.
Recommendations not implemented will require explanation to the Audit
Committee. This could lead to findings being reported in the Internal
Control Statement produced by the Council in support of the Annual
Accounts.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Thanks are due to all staff within the Catering and Cleaning Section of

Operational Services at Argyll House, Dunoon. Thanks are also due to the
3




Page 42

Argyll & Bute Council
Review of Operational Services — Catering Procurement

Exchequer Manager, ICT and Financial Services based within the
Corporate Services Department.

8.2 Argyll & Bute Council’s Internal Audit section has prepared this report. Our
work was limited to the objectives in Section 2. We cannot be held
responsible or liable if information material to our task was withheld or
concealed from us, or misrepresented to us.

8.3 This report is private and confidential for the Council’s information only and
is solely for use in the provision of an internal audit service to the Council.
The report is not to be copied, quoted or referred to, in whole or in part,
without prior written consent.



"901id Jonpoud

‘pa1oadxs usaq
aAeY p|nom se a91id 10.4u00
ay1 1e Jou 1nq J1onpoid aAlleula)e

”<4u 9102 10BJU0D 8y] Jsulebe ue Aq paijddns alem paiapio
® pabueyd aoud ul 8oUBIBYHIP | SOUI| JOBJIUOD 810D JO %92 dWOS
w 8y} 4o} palsanbal sajou poLiad 10eJ1U0D |elliul 8y} U|
N 1paI0 pue palddns jJou Sem | “9NPaYOSs 10BIIU0D 1S4} Byl Ylm
INQg paisixa jonpoid 10esju0o S9p092 19NpoId apinoid Jou pIp
2109 ® alaym palddns |90X3 puUB|1090S “Jaquinu apod
"'seoINBS | sjonpoud Ajuepi 0} peyoayo 1onpo.d ayj ajonb 0] Buuspio
Aujoe4 aq p|noys Jaquealdeg | uaym siun salsinbal Jaiddns ay|
‘1obeuep 8 U0 Joeluod A19d0iB ‘oyI|e Jalddns pue siawoisno
Buiues|n M3U By} JO JUBWadUBWWOD |  JO Sjuswalinbai uonelisiuiwpe 2’1
6002 Yoiel Lg pue Buusien ay] 90UIS PaNsS! SBJI0AU| By} pajosyje sey uoisuedxy | wnips| | | xipuaddy 2
‘ou
NOILLY NGNS | Z1aIonodans NOLLYGNIWINOO3Y payuap| ssouxeap, | oPeID | ydesbesed e
NV7d NOILODV
¢ XIN3ddVv

Juswaindoid Buuslen — saoineg [euonesadQ JO Malnay
llouno) eing 3 ||AB1y




‘ureyd Ajddns ay)
ul saiued (e Buowe ejep Jo
abueyoxa jdwoid sy} ainsus

ulyum saied pajsalalul Jaylo
pue suun ay} Jo sjuswalinbal
nuaw a8y} 1INs 0} saul|

1onpoud Jo Jaquinu ayj Buionpal
AQ @say) puswe pue (syluow g
ul sanssi g ‘enoge ¢ juiod uoioe
9]0U) S8INPaYIS 10BIUOD By}

"Jabeuely | 01 uOIEOIUNWWOD JO SPoylaW M3IABJ 0] 8SNOH |ABJy 1B yels
Janbayox3 0] uaAIb aq os|e pjnoys | Juswabeuew paJinbai sey |99x3
ayl yum uolleJapISUOD MOjeq / 1. pue|109S BIA 10esju0d A1900.46
uonounfuod ul | pepuswiwooal se sainpasoud sayeig ay) ul saul| jonpoud el
6002 Yo4ep LE | seoniag Aljioe4 | luswainooid ayl Buimainel u| JO Jagqwinu 8y} ul 8sealoul ay | ybiH | | xipuaddy v
|90X3 PUB[109S 0] SUJI8dU0D
Sl ssaudxa 0] [1Iouno)
ay} Joy} |oAs| areudoidde ay)
<+ aulwJdlap p|Noys oym preoqg "Hels 10BJUO0D 8y} Jale
S 1UBWAINJ0Id @ SB2INIBS syluow g awos bBuleq g pue /
o) paJjeys ayl Aq paJapIsuod aq | S8INPaYIS ul pasind20 sabueyd
w p|NOYS uollepuswwodal siy | ayl J0 %69 1Byl palou os[e
all Sem }| ‘saseaJoul 891d 01 %/ 2
"Jayns Ale|iwis Jou op poo | pue sepod }onposd mau Jo anss|
uazoli4 68 s1oeIUOD aininy 3y} O} pale|al alam °4,9¢ 1eyl
Jeyl ainsus 0} suolysebbns | smoys sabueyo ay} Jo sisAjeue
apinoid pue sBullodUOoYsS 8y} | Uy "awl} 8y} 1e saiiioyine usl|o
Jabeuepy | Buneoipul AjAIONIISUOD BUOP ay}] 0] panss| a1om asay} Jo e
lanbayox3 8Q P|NOYS SIY| "PaonpoJlul | I JBd[O J0oU SI )| "SuoISed20 Jybioe
a3yl yum | sem 1oesjuod A182016 mau ay) uo |90x3 pue|109S Aq pajepdn
uonounfuod ul | 1eyl Aem ayj ul uolOB)SIIESSIP uaaq sey 9|Npayds 10e4U0D)
S82INBS INO JO pasIApe Ajlewoy 8y} 10BJJUOY) |80X] PUB|I00S el
6002 yotep LE | Aujioe4 jo pesH 8Q p|NOYS |99X3 PUB|109S | By} JO JUBWSDUSWIWOD 8yl 82UIS | wnipsyy | | Xipuaddy €
‘ou
NOLLY LNGNSan | 1aISNOdaas NOLLVANIWWOO3H paunuap sseuxeap, | oPeid | ydesbeied e

Juswaindoid Buuslen — saoineg [euonesadQ JO Malnay
llouno) eing 3 ||AB1y




aoud
BuiAng wnwndo syl Buninsua
sny} jonpoud pajeuiwou
"'S80INIBS 10 9109 B Se papn|oul
Alujioe4 | 10 papioAe Jaylie aq ued Aay)
‘1ebeuen JI BuUIWIB1BpP 0] pajebiisaAul "sSaul| 1onpoid 8109 uou
Buiues|H aq p|noys paseyoind Bulaq 10} 8Je palapio saul| 1onpoid 9l
6002 aunp 0g pue Buuslen | saul 8409 -uou Jo abues ay| K1820.6 J0 9,0 JO SS8Xd U| | wnipsyy | | Xipuaddy 9
‘lrewa
AQ auop sI siy] ‘suoleoo| Jisy}
Ajnou uiny ur oym ‘uswpedap
0 YIOM [BI00S ‘SOIAISS
® Alunwwon 0} sebueyd 10esU0d
w Ajou osje Bulslen ‘sjiews jo
o abueyoxe a8y} 40} SHUN Y] UIYlIM
a|qe|ieAe saljjioe) Buipndwoo
ou a.e alay) se sebueyo
1ebeue 10 suun Buiesado ay) Buisiape ul
Jlanbayoxg "'SHUN ulyum | BuLunooo aJe sAejop sajnpayos
3yl yum | s|gejieAe saljioe) buiindwod 10BJIU0D JO anssi Jo Aousanbauy
uonounluod ui Buiyew 1o} Juswalinbal syl | Buisesaloul ue ylum Jeyl suiaouod Gl
60 aunp g | saoInBeg Aljioey M3IABJ pINOYS Juswabeue) aAeY Juswabeuew bBuusien | Xxipuaddy (o]
IdUNoY aIng B
[IABIY UIylIM SB2IAISS palsalalul
Jayjo sn|d suun |e o} pajsod
uay} aJe 8say] ‘|Iounon ay}
‘ou
3iva 4301440
NOLLY.LNIWI1dIl | 318I1SNOdSIH NOILVAN3IWNOD3H paynuep| ssewjesp\ | dpelD | ydeibeled :o.__m,_m

Juswaindoid Buuslen — saoineg [euonesadQ JO Malnay
llouno) eing 3 ||AB1y




‘g|qissod

lanalaym asiyadxa Jo saiuad
aleudoidde yum ajelioqe||0o
0] lJuswalinbal yoogpueH
K21j0d 1uBWaIN201d Ysinoos
3y} 188w OS[e p|nom SIy |
‘wea] Juswalinoolid-a ayl

Aq auop aq p|nod Juswalels
Alyiuow e jo Buosyo

8y} Jeyl psjedlipul sem }
‘sjuswalels Alyiuow o0 |
Bulylewos 0] Sa210AUl 000‘GE
Aj@rewixoidde jo Buissesoid
ay1 1n0 12 pue ‘SadIoAUI
Buiouooal pue Bunosyo

"SUOIjoBSURI] SN[BA MO| ‘OWN|OA
ybiy 1o} poylaw juswainooid

e se pajebisanul 8q pjnoys
asnoy aJem]os Juspuadapul
ue 10 pJed ayj Bunnowoud

% awl} Jjels Jun aonpal syueq ay} Aq padojenap
()} pINOM pJe ) Juswalindold | asemyos Buiodal Juswabeuew
w JUBWIUIBAOK) Y] MaInal doy YlUM pue paljilusapl sem wolsAs
all )Sop e woi4 -Buissesoid | pieD JusWwaINd0Id JUSLWIUIBAQK)
Blep asn pJed yim wapue} | ay] "abeis Aes ue Je paurews.
ul pue Apdwouid uorewuojur | sy} ing uondo pien Buiseydind
1abeuep Juswabeuew apinoid e Je|noiyed ul palapisuod
Janbayox3 0] sjuswalinbal a1em)jos usaqg pey sanljqissod
a3yl yum Se ||om Se sjoeJjuod Aiddns Jay10 "s1onpoud Buuaies ayy
uonounfuod ul | 1onpoud Bulisleo 1oy Ajjigelns JO Juswainooid 8y} 1o} walsAs
sooIAIBS Alj1oe4 Ajnuapi 01 sped Buiseyound alelidoidde ue palspisSuod
‘Jabeuep alebiisoAul pjnoys SaoIAIeS | Jou sem SODJd eyl paulejdxa
Buiues|n Aupoe ‘wes) Juswainooid SEM }I Wes] Juswainoold Lt
6002 aunp 0 pue Buuaien -9 9y} yum uonounluod uj -9 9] YlIM UOISSNISIP U| ybiH | | xipuaddy yA
‘ou
3iva 4301440
NOLLY.LNIWI1dIl | 318I1SNOdSIH NOILVAN3IWNOD3H paynuep| ssewjesp\ | dpelD | ydeibeled :o.__m,_m

Juswaindoid Buuslen — saoineg [euonesadQ JO Malnay
llouno) eing 3 ||AB1y




Page 47

Juswaindoid Buuslen — saoineg [euonesadQ JO Malnay
llouno) eing 3 ||AB1y



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49 Agenda ltem 7

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 6 MARCH 2009

AUDIT SCOTLAND NATIONAL REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008 - 2009

1. SUMMARY
The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (the Code) issued by
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in 2000 and
further revised in 2006 sets out good practice in delivering internal audit services.
Grant Thornton UK LLP, in May 2007 carried out a Code compliance review and
in their resultant report recommended that external audit reports (including Audit
Scotland reports) be reported to the Audit Committee. Attached in Appendix 1 is
the most recent report form Audit Scotland.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal
Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1 Audit Scotland issued an Accounts Commission report in November 2008
entitled, “Priorities and Risks Framework”. The Priorities and Risks
Framework (PRF) is a tool for external auditors to use when planning the
audits of local government bodies in Scotland. It is a document which
summarises the key national priorities and risks which face councils in the
coming year. The PRF provides auditors with a resource to develop their
understanding of current national issues as they relate to their client.
Auditors will use it in conjunction with an evaluation of any other local risk
areas to establish the key issues facing an individual client.

3.2 The key messages from this national report are attached.
3.3  The full report can either be viewed at http://www.audit-

scotland.gov.uk/work/local national.php or viewed in the Members room
where a copy has been provided.

4, CONCLUSIONS

This report is submitted to the Audit Committee for consideration.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None

54 Legal: None



Page 50

5.5 Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604216). 12febfinalreport126feb



Page 51

;

Priorities and
Risks Framework

AUDIT SCOTLAND

2008/09 - 2010/11 National Audit Planning Tool for Local Government
November 2008




Page 52

Contents

Foreword 1
introduction 2
Background 2
The role of the PRF 3
Links with the audit of Best Value 4

Looking Forward — Shared Risk

Assessment 7
Cross cutting issues 7
Equality and Diversity 8
Sustainability 10

Structure of the 2008-09 — 2010-11
PRF 13

Priorities and Risks
Framework 14

Vision and Strategic Direction 14

Partnership Working and
Community Leadership /
Engagement 18

Governance and Accountability 21

25 November 2008

Performance Management and
Improvement

Risk Management
Use of Resources

«  Financial Management
People Management
Asset Management
Procurement
Information Management

Service Priorities and Risks

Appendix A

Key challenges identified by
Inspectorates

HMIE
SWIA
SHR

Further information

Glossary of Terms

36
44
47
52
55

24
31
36

60

62

62
62
62
63

64

72



Page 53

Foreword

Local government in Scotland has a key role in developing the quality of life in local communities and vital
public services including education, social work, housing, roads, refuse collection, leisure services, police

services and fire and rescue services. It also has to see that public money is spent wisely and properly.

Services delivered directly, or in partnership with others, involve substantial resources; councils spend
around £18 billion each year, employ around 229,500 full-time equivalent staff and use assets worth about
£26 billion. Currently there are significant pressures on finances: the economic downturn, meeting the
needs of an aging population, requirements such as single status and new national policy expectations
such as school class sizes and waste management. These pressures necessitate even greater emphasis

on efficiency and the effective use of resources.

In the past year, the concordat between the Scottish Government and COSLA has been signed. The
concordat provides more flexibility in how councils spend money and deliver services; in return they are
required to give clear commitments through Single Outcome Agreements to achieve outcomes that are
important to the government’s national policies. The national priorities in the concordat cover activities that
are not delivered exclusively by councils and achieving progress requires joint working among partners at a
local level. From 2009, SOAs will have to be agreed through community planning partnerships between
councils and other public bodies such as health boards and enterprise companies.

The focus on outcomes does not remove the need for good management processes and robust information
about the quality, accessibility and value for money of services. Statutory duties relating to Best Value,
Community Planning and Public Performance Reporting remain in place and need to be supported by

effective performance management systems.

Significant changes are occurring in the scrutiny of public services. The Accounts Commission is assuming
a coordinating role to ensure that scrutiny bodies work together to assess risks and plan scrutiny work. In
2009 we move on to the second round of BV audits (BV2) and we are currently implementing a programme
of improvements in the audit process to ensure that it continues to support improving services in local

government.

Against this background, | am pleased to present our Priorities and Risks Framework (PRF) for 2008-09 to
2010-11. This is now a well established part of our approach to local government audit. In producing the
PRF we improve our understanding of local government business and its current context and in discussing
the key national priorities and the risks to their achievement with councils as part of our local audit
planning, we collect important information which informs our audit approach. We also know that councils
obtain value from our application of the PRF locally which helps confirm and inform their assessment of the

potential risks they face.

Caroline Gardner, Controller of Audit

25 November 2008 Page 1 of 78



Page 54

Introduction

Background

1. The local government environment within Scotland has continued to evolve since we issued the last
Priorities and Risk Framework document in 2007. The Concordat between COSLA and the Scottish
Government has led to the successful development and signing of Single Outcome Agreements
(SOAs) between all thirty two councils and the Government by June 2008. Half of these first phase
SOAs were developed with Community Planning Partnerships (CPPs).

2. The 2009-10 SOAs are expected to be endorsed by CPP Boards and signed by the Scottish
Government, by councils, by the statutory community planning partners and other public bodies in the
planning partnerships. The evolving nature of the SOAs will bring fresh challenges and risks in

respect of governance, accountability and performance management.

3. In November 2008, the Scottish Government announced a series of proposed reforms to the scrutiny
landscape in response to the Crerar report. Audit Scotland, on behalf of the Accounts Commission, is
developing a shared approach to risk assessment and planning to enable the delivery of more
streamlined and better co-ordinated scrutiny in local government.

4. As part of a more integrated approach to scrutiny we are developing an overarching corporate
assessment framework which reflects our theory of improvement, that: Effective leadership, good
governance and sound management are necessary conditions for the delivery of sustainable
continuous improvement and effective outcomes. The corporate assessment framework will be used
as a primary component of our revised approach to the audit of best value and will also be reflected in

the PRF process and our audit planning.

5. The PRF is now a well established part of our audit approach and this year we have moved to a three
year period covering 2008-09 to 2010-11 which we will update annually to reflect changing priorities
and related risks. In this edition of the PRF we also provide more detail about the role of the PRF,
and its connections with our other work, including our programme of national performance audit

studies and our audits of Best Value and Community Planning.

6. Asin the past, we have consulted with colleagues in local government on the content of the PRF by
means of a stakeholder meeting and we are grateful to them for their advice and guidance.

25 November 2008 Page 2 of 78



Page 55

The role of the PRF

10.

1.

The PRF is used by auditors to help plan the risk-based audits of councils. It identifies the key
national priorities facing councils and the main risks to their achievement. This helps to ensure that

audit work takes account of sector specific national priorities and risks.

The PRF is designed primarily to inform local audit planning, but it is also an integral part of the overall
approach to local authority audit. In summary, the PRF sets out the priorities for local government
and the main risks to their achievement as we see them; the Sector Plan reflects our assessment of
the audit priorities, what we need to do and how we are going to go about doing it; and Overview
Reporting brings together the outputs and outcomes from the audit work to show themes, trends and

other matters we wish to highlight.

Auditors discuss the risks contained in the PRF with councils and the national view through the
application of the PRF is combined with the auditor's understanding of the key priorities and risks
operating at the local level. This overall assessment of risk informs the auditor's decisions on where
to target audit resources. This approach helps meet the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice
and International Standards on Auditing which require auditors to obtain an understanding of the

client’s business and environment.

Local discussions on the PRF represent an important annual engagement with the most senior
management in councils. They have the potential to make a significant contribution to our intelligence
gathering and national reporting and influence our programme of national performance audit studies.
The application of the PRF also provides a useful source of early intelligence for the Accounts
Commission about the risks facing the local authority sector. Throughout this document most
references are to the issues and risks facing councils, however many of the issues will also apply to

joint boards and other bodies.

It is important to note that auditors do not carry out detailed audit work on all the matters set out in the
PRF. Also, we recognise that even though the steps taken by councils to address issues in the PRF
may be weak, it does not necessarily follow that the risks will crystallise. We also acknowledge that
risks exist in all organisations committed to continuous improvement. The objective is to be risk
aware, with sound processes for risk management, rather than risk averse. Organisations that seek
to avoid risk entirely are unlikely to achieve Best Value as risk assessment (weighing up possible risks

and rewards) is key to identifying opportunities.

25 November 2008 Page 3 of 78



Page 56

Linvks with the audit of Best Value

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Outputs gathered through the application of the PRF; other intelligence such as Best Value findings
and follow-up work; the views and risk assessments of inspectorates; self assessments and other
performance analysis are playing a key part in ensuring that the second round of Best Value audits
(BV2) is proportionate and reflects the national context and local circumstances. The PRF process is

making an important contribution to streamlined scrutiny.

In February 2008, the Scottish Government invited the Accounts Commission to take on a gate
keeping role, through Audit Scotland, in relation to local government scrutiny, with the aim of moving
to a position where Best Value is the key corporate assessment tool and is better aligned with other
corporate audit and performance processes.

The Commission welcomed the opportunity to work with other scrutiny bodies to carry out their role in
providing assurance about the performance of councils and supporting improvement as efficiently and
effectively as possible, and to contribute towards better public services for the people of Scotland.

Spring 2009 will be a watershed for most of the scrutiny bodies in local government, with major
decisions due to be made about the future of BV audits and HMIE’s INEA inspections; the completion
of the first cycle of the HMIE-led child protection inspections and the first cycle of SWIA’s performance
inspections; the possible implementation of HMIE-led Services for Children inspections; and likely

changes to the minimum frequencies of inspection for the Care Commission.

Whilst the Scottish Housing Regulator’s baseline cycle of inspections of local authority housing and
homelessness services is not due to be completed until 2009/10 it is committed to supporting the

introduction of a single framework for assessing local authority performance.

The Government's National Performance Framework (NPF) assumes a continuing programme of
inspection of child protection in local authority areas regarding outcomes for vulnerable children.
Indicator 13 of the NPF is founded on the proportion of inspection reports that are positive.

The Commission has therefore agreed to work with the other scrutiny bodies over the next nine
months to develop and pilot a shared approach to risk assessment and planning, to enable the
delivery of more streamlined and better co-ordinated scrutiny in local government.

The work competed during 2008 has allowed the Commission to identify those councils where there is
an immediate opportunity to improve the co-ordination of scrutiny. Round table meetings for each of
these councils have been held to co-ordinate the planned work, and a schedule has been produced
setting out the targeted scrutiny activity and the improvements made. Whilst the primary purpose of

25 November 2008 Page 4 of 78



Page 57

these meetings was to deal with short-term improvement in scrutiny scheduling and secure more
proportionate scrutiny responses, the meetings also provided useful insights into how the Commission
might assess risk for future joint scrutiny planning and strengthen reliance on the work of other

scrutiny bodies.

20. The Accounts Commission is committed to the development of the Best Value audit (BV2) in the light
of their experience of the first round of audits.

21. The Commission has agreed with colleagues in the other scrutiny bodies that this work can fulfil the
requirement for a single corporate assessment of local authorities. The audit framework includes a
risk-based and proportionate corporate assessment (exhibit 1) and the Commission is committed to
working together to develop it so that it fulfils the requirements of all the scrutiny bodies in this area.

Exhibit 1
The audit framework for Best Value 2

Corporate Assessment

« Vision and Strategic Direction
Vision and strategic direction; leadership and culture; planning and resource
alignment

+ Partnership working and community leadership

» Community engagement

+ Governance and accountability
Governance and accountability; public performance reporting

+ Performance Management and improvement
Customer-focus and responsiveness; performance management; efficiency;
competitiveness; risk management

» Use of Resources
Financial management; asset management; people management;
procurement; ICT

¢ ANTVA 1S39

Performance Assessment

National and local outcomes High quality, continually

based on Single Outcome improving local services, that are
Agreements priorities and efficient and responsive to local
improvement targets. needs*.

* National outcome 15

Source: Audit Scotland
National Outcome 15 — Our public services are high quality, continually improving, efficient and responsive to local people’s needs

25 November 2008 Page 5 of 78



Page 58

22. One of the distinctive features of BV2 is the central role of risk assessment. Current thinking is that a
shared risk assessment would be carried out annually for each council; this would form the starting

point for planning, leading to a rolling three year scrutiny programme and a plan for each council. The
scrutiny plan would set out the detailed scrutiny activity to be undertaken during this period, and how
and when this work will be undertaken (with the caveat that there will always be a need for regulation
to be able to react swiftly when a significant problem is identified). Note that the timing of a second
programme of HMIE child protection inspections will be considered as part of the BV2 scrutiny plan.

23. A potential model for delivering the shared scrutiny risk assessment and joint scrutiny planning is
shown at exhibit 2. This model also reflects the recent proposals from the Reducing Burdens Action
Group to Scottish Ministers designed to deliver a proportionate and intelligence-led approach to audit

and inspection.

Exhibit 2

Shared scrutiny risk assessment and joint scrutiny planning

Environmental
analysis
(including national
priorities and risks)

Self evaluation
Assisted self evaluations

]

Single Outcome
Agreement and other
performance
information

Scrutiny
risk
assessment

Round table discussion
HMIE, SWIA,
Care Commission,
Scottish Housing Regulator,
Audit Scotland

1t

Annual audit
intelligence
Inspection intelligence
BV audit findings

Source: Audit Scotland/RBAG report to Ministers

Meeting with
Council/
Partners

=N

Scrutiny
Plans

25 November 2008

Page 6 of 78




Page 59

24. Effective risk assessment needs good intelligence on the organisation being assessed. This is likely
to include a range of quantitative data (e.g. service performance activity, quality and cost) supported

by qualitative information.
Looking Forward — Shared Risk Assessment

25. There is still a good deal of work to do to develop a risk assessment methodology that offers
assurance that planned audit and inspection activity is both proportionate and adequate, but the
Commission and Audit Scotland are confident that this can be delivered in 2009. Achievement of this,
however, will also require a much stronger commitment from local government in developing
consistently good performance management systems that can provide the performance information
required. As Crerar pointed out, responsibility for performance lies primarily with service providers
and external scrutiny arrangements should complement performance management arrangements.

26. Experience to date has confirmed that there is real commitment from all the scrutiny bodies to this
work but this is a complex issue and there are many challenges still to overcome, including:
= trust and reliance on the work of each scrutiny body
= the need for enabling legislation
= risk management and a mechanism for resolving disputes about the scrutiny required
= communication with local government and other stakeholders.

27. Expectations are that this work will lead to reductions in the overall cost of scrutiny and also to
improvements in effectiveness. This will require changes in working practices and changes in the

focus of our work. As part of that process we anticipate seeing more flexible use of resources and a

greater emphasis on risk assessment and improvement support.

Cross cutting issues
28. In addition to the headings under the corporate assessment heading at Exhibit 1, there are a number

of cross cutting issues that are important elements of the overall audit approach, including equality

and diversity, and sustainability.

25 November 2008 Page 7 of 78



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61

Equality and Diversity

Why equality and diversity are important issues

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Equality and diversity are widely recognised as fundamentally important factors in the sound
management of a modern, effective organisation — whether in the private or public sector. The
Accounts Commission, through appointed auditors, has the opportunity and authority to assess and
report how well councils are meeting their equalities responsibilities.

Councils can find it hard to understand and manage the full range of their equalities obligations.
Equalities legislation has developed piecemeal since the 1970s to the point where there are now nine
major pieces of discrimination legislation; around 100 statutory instruments setting out connected
rules and regulations; and more than 2,500 pages of guidance and statutory codes of practice.

The legislation that may apply in a particular set of circumstances is not always obvious. Certain
legislation is specific to a particular equality strand, such as race or gender. Other legislation is more
generic and touches on all equality strands.

The form and function of equalities legislation has evolved over the years. The early legislation on
race equality was most concerned with bodies’ organisational arrangements compared to some later
legislation, where the impact on people has greater emphasis. The equality duties on race, gender
and disability vary in their style and requirements and have different reporting timescales. Councils
tell us they see benefits in managing their equalities responsibilities in a more harmonised way,
legislation permitting.

In November 2008 the Accounts Commission published a report titled ‘The impact of the race equality
duty on council services’. The report found that while councils have developed policies on race
equality they now need to ensure that these have a positive impact on people from minority ethnic
communities, through the design and delivery of services. The report concludes that councils need to
build a better understanding of the needs of their minority ethnic communities; mainstream their
approach to race equality; and give more priority to race equality in delivering services.

Key risks

34.

Councils risk continuing to follow a culture of compliance

Findings from the recent study into race equality and from audits of best value and community
planning indicate that councils tend to feature a compliance culture on equalities issues. Councils
have tended to focus on meeting their legislative commitments rather than trying to define the
equalities outcomes they wish to achieve — for example by developing documents such as an equality

25 November 2008 Page 8 of 78



35.

36.

37.

- Page 62

scheme for each of the three core duties on race, gender and disability. However, these high-level
arrangements have not always linked into key processes such as service planning, service delivery or
performance reporting.

Councils risk refining their management arrangements without ensuring they make an impact

Councils have concentrated on embedding organisational arrangements and processes, such as
improving community engagement and consultation, staff training, performance management and
reporting on employee monitoring. While these are all important, they are not an end in themselves
and it is paramount that a council’'s intended outcomes are also clear. Councils have often found
themselves falling short of mainstreaming equalities at all levels of their organisation. If councils do
not have a clear set of objectives at corporate and service levels, they risk suffering from a lack of
explicit direction, and from being in a weak position to deliver the benefits to employees and
communities that their equality duties anticipate.

Councils risk being unable to evidence their performance against their equality duties

The study into the impact of the race equality duty found that councils have difficulty giving a clear,
evidence-based account of their performance against the race equality duty. Best value audits paint a
similar picture on other equality strands, such as gender and disability. Councils have, overall,
conducted very few impact assessments on services and are poor at planning prioritised programmes
of impact assessments across the full range of services they deliver. Councils find their performance
on these more recent aspects even harder to evidence: age, sexual orientation and religion/belief.

If councils cannot systematically evidence their approach to equalities and their performance, they are
at risk of being criticised by their electorate, their workforce and the Equality and Human Rights
Commission (EHRC). The EHRC recently came close to taking action against Aberdeen City Council
over its approach to impact-assessing the consequence of closing a specialist day care centre.

Looking forward

38.

Audit Scotland continues to promote the equalities agenda at a number of levels:

Audit Scotland’s corporate plan 2007-10 sets out commitments with an equality dimension: support
for democratic scrutiny; maximising the value of the audit; and building an effective and efficient
organisation

Statutory Performance Indicators cover aspects of equalities
Equality issues are a standing item in each Best Value audit

Diversity and equality issues are considered in the scoping of new national studies.

25 November 2008 Page 9 of 78



39.

40.

41.

Page 63

Specific aspects of authorities’ arrangements may come under scrutiny as part of a risk-based
approach and could include such issues as how the legislation is enforced: how equalities issues are
managed in service provision; changes to service design and delivery; recruitment and selection;
public performance reporting; how complaints on equalities issues are recorded and responded to.

The recent Accounts Commission report on race equality recommends that councillors and senior
managers in councils ensure race equality is incorporated into the improvement management
approaches they have already established under Best Value, and do more to identify and share good
practice. It also calls for support from key national organisations including the Equality and Human
Rights Commission, Scottish Government, Improvement Service, Convention of Scottish Local
Authorities, and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers. Many of the
report’s findings and recommendations are relevant to how authorities address their other equality
responsibilities.

In June 2008, the UK government published plans for a new equality bill. The bill is intended to pave
the way for a single equalities act for the UK and bring race, disability, sex and other grounds of
discrimination within one piece of legislation, under one over-arching equality duty. Under the new bill,
the government also plans to: outlaw age discrimination; require more transparency by public bodies;
extend the scope of positive action in recruitment; and strengthen provision for enforcement action.
The present statutory equality duties on race, gender and disability all remain in place until such time
as a Single Equality Act arrives. Lessons learnt by councils from meeting the race equality duty should
be helpful in securing their effective delivery on any new duty.

Sustainability

42.

43.

Best Value audit work to date highlights that in relation to sustainability, the primary focus of council
efforts have been on waste management and energy management, where they have been supported
in recent years by external funding. There is a real risk that progress towards the government's wider
sustainability agenda and proposed targets will be insufficient. At present the majority of local
authorities are unable to demonstrate their contribution to sustainability and there remains significant
scope to develop performance management systems and introduce quality of life indicators (as
referred to in statutory BV guidance) to strengthen this.

Local authorities play a pivotal role in helping achieve the Scottish Government's overall purpose to
focus government and public services on creating a more successful country, with opportunities for all
of Scotland to flourish, through increasing sustainable economic growth. Our approach to auditing
their contribution to this and their impact on climate change is developing and will be shaped in the
near future by the introduction of climate change legislation.

25 November 2008 Page 10 of 78



44.

45.

46.

Page 64

The Scottish Government recognises that climate change is one of the most serious threats we face
as a global community and is determined that Scotland will play a leading role in the international
effort to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. All sections of Scottish society need to take action on
climate change. In this context, the whole of the public sector in Scotland has a fundamental role to
play, showing leadership on its own account and setting and delivering policies that encourage and
enable action by others. To this end the government is introducing a Scottish Climate Change Bill that
will include enabling provisions to allow duties to be placed on public bodies to take action on climate
change.

The Scottish Government is committed to working in partnership with other parts of the public sector
in responding to climate change. An example of this commitment is Scotland's Climate Change
Declaration, a voluntary declaration signed by all Scottish local authorities committing them to
contribute to the delivery of Scotland's and the UK's climate change programmes, including actions to
address greenhouse gas emissions from their own operations and to encourage and work with others
in the local community to take action to reduce emissions and to adapt to the impact of climate
change. The Scottish Government supports the Sustainable Scotland Network to provide assistance
to local authorities in meeting their commitments in Scotland's Climate Change Declaration. The
Scottish Government has also entered into Single Outcome Agreements with each local authority
which are aligned with the National Performance Framework and has issued guidance to public
bodies to ensure that they too are aligned with the National Performance Framework, which includes
targets to reduce emissions over the period to 2011 and by 80% by 2050.

The target to reduce Scotland's greenhouse gas emissions by at least 80% by 2050 (from the 1990
baseline set in the Kyoto Protocol), is one of the most ambitious in the world. It will form the keystone
of the Bill. The Scottish Government is clear that emissions reductions should be achieved in the most
cost effective way possible in support of its commitment to increasing sustainable economic growth in
Scotland. Setting an ambitious long-term emissions target will not be enough in isolation to drive the
emissions reductions that are required. The Bill will therefore establish:

an interim target to reduce Scotland's greenhouse gas emissions by 50% by 2030 (achieving this
50% target by 2030 will require average annual emissions reductions of greater than 3% from
2010); and

a robust statutory framework based on annual targets to ensure action is taken continuously over
the period up to 2050. These annual targets will be based on expert advice from the UK
Committee on Climate Change and will be set more than 10 years in advance so that private and
public sector organisations can plan with certainty over the longer term.

25 November 2008 Page 11 of 78



47.

48.

Page 65

The Scottish Climate Change Bill will place strong duties on Minsters to report progress towards
meeting the emissions reduction targets set by the Bill. In addition, the Bill will also require regular
reporting of Ministers' plans and policies to help Scotland adapt to the effects of climate change.

Other aspects of the Bill that will have an impact on local authorities include:

» Energy efficiency action plan: the importance of helping people to consume less energy,

thereby reducing emissions and saving money, is reflected in the Bill requiring Scottish Ministers to
produce an energy efficiency action plan which is regularly reported upon, reviewed and updated.

Waste reduction and recycling: helping Scotland to become a zero waste society is one of the
Scottish Government's priorities and the Scottish Climate Change Bill will include enabling powers
to allow Scottish Ministers to make regulations to reduce waste and encourage recycling.

Improving the energy performance of existing non-domestic buildings: many existing non-
domestic buildings in Scotland have inadequate levels of thermal insulation, and inefficient heating
and cooling systems. Scottish Ministers want to encourage building owners to carry out
improvement work which increases the energy performance of their buildings. This will not only
save money on future energy costs but will help to reduce the emissions that these buildings
produce. Consultation on specific proposals for improving the energy performance of existing non-
domestic buildings is ongoing. If any legislative measures are needed to take forward the policies
which result from this consultation it is anticipated that these will be incorporated in the Scottish
Climate Change Bill.

Renewable heat: Scottish Ministers aim to build a commercially viable, diverse, renewable heat
industry in Scotland in support of meeting the Scottish Government's proposed 2020 renewable
energy target of 11% of heat demand to come from renewable sources. The Bill will contain
enabling powers to allow the creation of regulations to promote and incentivise the generation of
heat from renewable sources.

49. Another example of sustainability is demographic change and its impact on demand for services. In

50.

particular Scotland’s ageing population profile will lead to a rising demand for social care services,
which current arrangements do not provide for. Demographic changes will also affect demand for
schools, demand for places may decline in some areas and rise in others, and other services.

The issue of how organisations plan for and achieve sustainability is one of the most challenging long
term questions facing the public sector and this is reflected throughout this document. As ever,
careful long term planning is crucial.

25 November 2008 Page 12 of 78



Page 66

Structure of the 2008-09 — 2010-11 PRF

51. To better align our PRF as part of a more integrated approach to scrutiny we have adopted the
proposed overarching corporate assessment framework. This reflects our theory of improvement:
Effective leadership, good governance and sound management are necessary conditions for the
delivery of sustainable continuous improvement and effective outcomes.

52. To promote the links described above between the PRF and other work, we have set out this year's
PRF under headings that reflect those we are using to develop the corporate assessment for Best
Value 2(BV2) (Exhibit 1). As such, the section headings are:

e Vision and strategic direction

« Partnership Working and Community Leadership / Engagement
e Governance and Accountability

e Performance management and improvement

¢ Risk management

« Use of resources (financial management; people management; asset management; procurement;
information management)

e Service priorities and risks.

25 November 2008 Page 13 of 78



Page 67 Agenda Item 8

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 6 March 2009

EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2008 — 2009.

1. SUMMARY

The Internal Audit Annual Plan requires that follow up reviews be conducted for all
audits completed during the prior year. Internal Audit also document the progress made
by departmental management in implementing the recommendations made by both
External Audit and Internal Audit. The current reporting system was introduced and
approved by the Audit Committee in August 2004. Set out below are the results from a
review performed by Internal Audit for recommendations due to be implemented by 31%
December 2008.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Appendix I is a statistical summary of the 2005/06, 2006/07, 2007/08 and 2008/09
Internal Audit reports issued prior to December 2008. It details the number of
recommendations to be implemented by the follow up date, the number
implemented and those past their implementation date. The implementation date
used for reporting to this Audit Committee is 31st December 2008. A reference
column has been added to provide a link to Appendix 2, where reasons are given
by local management as to why recommendations have not been implemented by
the agreed date. There is an additional column showing when those actions not yet
implemented had been reported to previous Audit Committees. The same layout
has been used for the follow up of External Audit report recommendations.

3.2 Appendix 1 is split into 2 documents la & 1b. The first document refers to all
reports with recommendations due October to December 2008. The second
document lists action points outstanding from the previous Audit Committees.
These are points that should have been implemented by 30th September 2008 for
the last Audit Committee. The same layout has been used for the reporting of
External Audit report recommendations in Appendices 3 & 4.

3.3 All new external audit reports issued by External Audit to the Council are reported

initially separately to the Audit Committee with their executive summary and
action plan. Thereafter they are included in the summary list for external audit.

4. CONCLUSIONS

Implementation of all recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal
Audit.



Page 68

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Alex Colligan of Internal Audit on (01546 604271)

11 February 2009



Page 69

0 b I [el0 ]
[ [ 800¢ J19qUBAON 6002/800¢ 8duaisisgngS B |[9ABl] JJElS JO MSIASY
0 L I 800¢ 18qWIBAON 6002/800¢ buiseydind jo mainay
60/800C
P omumnsar [P vonewewrduy| - SETESEL T pode on
usoyy | Aq pauonoe sjuiog LEAQ P 1y 1eq 1 d Hpny
/3INpPayas puiysg 9 0} sjuiod

V | XIAN3ddVY

800¢ Joquieda( 01 Ja(0j90 WoJg ang suoljepuswitioday Y spoday

ATewnwing - dn mojj04 11oday Npny [eulaiu]




Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71

HE € 14" 14" [elo|
] L 0 1 L 900¢ Joquadag YIOMaWel ] JusWabeUR YSiY oyl JO MAIASY
IR TE! 4 0 2 2 5002 |1dy 9pOJ [enuspnid 8yl JO MalAsY
€d L 0 b L /00¢ 1snbny 2002 Hodsuel ] Jl|qnd B [00YdS JO MSIASY
0 L 1 L /002 UdIe JUBWaINJ01d-3 § PUISBYJINd JO MAIASY
0 3 L L £00g Areniged uoie|sibe] MoN JO MaIAsY
1D L 0 1 1 800z aunr SUONBI|IDU0D9Y Yueg - suoneladQ JabpaT [eiauaxr) Jo mainay
0 I 1 1 £00¢ J8qUIBAON 8002//00¢ Si0lpal] JO maineY
8%v'cd € 0 [ [ £00¢ J18quisAoN dn-mo||0} UOISIO8(J 881IWWOY % [IDUN0D JO MSIASY
/8V'eY g 0 € € /002 12quada(g sasea] buiiesad ¥ aliH 10BJJUOD JO MOIASY
poAIBoo) S99 lwwo)
9OUdPIND siep 8002 1aqwadag Hpny
: uonejuswajduwi snoinaid
uauynsuj Aq L Aq pauonoe woug ajeq Hoday Hpny
/2INpayds pauoiloe sjuiod 99 01 Siuod Buipueisino
puiysg
IIinS siuiod

9 | XIAN3ddVY

S9IIw0) JIpNY SNOIAdId WO.4 BUIPUEISINQ Sjulod




Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

ACTION DATE OF
PLAN GRADE | WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED |  AGREED ACTION  |RESPOMSIBLE| ipLement | REVISED | commENT/EXPLANATION
NUMBER ATION
A - REVIEW OF CONTRACT HIRE & OPERATING LEASES

2|MATERIAL The photocopier contract is for |A value for money review is Exchequer 30 June 2008 July 2009 |This recommendation is a
more than £100,000 annually |to be carried out on Manager 31 December shared task. Work has been
for rental alone, with completion of the internal 2008 carried out regarding the
maintenance charges perhaps |print strategy and development of a
being as much again, thus implementation of any procurement strategy for
committing the Council to recommendations. printers. At the same time a
considerable expenditure for printer strategy is being
the next five years. This prepared and that will seek
expenditure should however to reduce the number of
be offset by the potential printers.
savings to be made from use
of the advanced facilities
available from the new
machines. It is however
necessary for the Council to
monitor the savings gained.

4 MATERIAL In view of there being a Steps should be commenced Director of 31 December Steps Action has commenced on
reasonable possibility that the [by the Council to decide the Operational 2007 commenced |making a case re for funding
bridge option for the Cuan action to be taken in the Services 18 September of a high level bridge.
Sound crossing may not be event of the Scottish 2008 Difficulty being faced is
accepted by the Scottish Government deciding not to cessation of ferry will result
Government the Council fund a high level bridge. in a reduction in RSG
should be considering taking funding.
steps to plan for the lease or
purchase of a ferry boat and This work is focussed on the
the other implications flowing overall cost to the public
from that. purse (irrespective of where

that cost falls) comparing
capital costs and
repayments against RSG

¢/ abed



APPENDIX 2

ACTION
PLAN
NUMBER

GRADE

WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED

AGREED ACTION

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

DATE OF
IMPLEMENT
ATION

REVISED
DATE

COMMENT/EXPLANATION

support and operating costs.

As this work will have to
compare long term
discounted costs for capital
works against short term
operating costs there is a
need to ensure the
comparison is accurate and
can be convincing to the
Scottish Government if we
feel there is a case to be
made.

If there is no case to be
made then the investment
needs will need to be met by
a proper Asset Management
approach, which we will be
flagging up in our Piers and
Harbours Business Plan,
which we plan to bring to the
Council as part of our
information linking to the
response we will make to the
Scottish Ferries Review
process.

MATERIAL

The potential savings from the
use of the advanced
networking facilities available
throughout the Council based
on the experience gained from

Once the potential savings
have been estimated a
report is to be produced for
management forecasting the
potential savings. This report

Head of ICT &
Financial
Services and
Head of
Democratic

31 March 2008
30 September
2008

31 October
2009

The print room merger has
commenced under Prince2
process and will complete
April 2009. the uniflow
project will commence at the

v/ ebed



APPENDIX 2

ACTION DATE OF
PLAN GRADE | WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED |  AGREED ACTION | RESPONSIBLE| 5 emenT | REVISED | CcOMMENT/EXPLANATION
OFFICER DATE

NUMBER ATION
Manse Brae and Argyll House, (would need to be followed Services & conclusion of the merger and
the print usage and estimated |up with actual savings Governance successful go live.
savings at Kilmory and the achieved. Such reports
savings in schools have not  |would be useful evidence
yet been estimated and towards showing Audit
reported to management. Scotland that the Council is

achieving BV.
B - REVIEW OF COUNCIL & COMMITTEE DECISION FOLLOW-UP
2|MATERIAL An evaluation and assessment |The Head of Legal & Head of Legal & | 31 March 2008 | 31 March |A review meeting was held

of the benefits obtained from |Protective Services should Protective 31 October 2009 with Brodies on 13/11/08. A
the implementation of the submit an annual report to Services 2008 report to SMT no later than

recommendations arising from
the Legal services Best Value
Review has yet to be
completed.

SMT on the outcomes and
benefits arising from the
Legal Services Best Value
Review. Legal Services
should continue to monitor
and assess the benefits of
the partnership with Brodies
by means of regular
meetings. This should also
be included in the annual
report.

end of March 2009.

G/ abed



APPENDIX 2

ACTION

DATE OF

PLAN GRADE | WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED |  AGREED ACTION  |RESPOMSIBLE| ipLement | REVISED | commENT/EXPLANATION
FFICER DATE
NUMBER ATION
4|FUNDAMENTAL (Implementation of the Car Roads and Amenity Services| Head of Roads | 29 February Steps Action has commenced on
Parking Strategy agreed by will ensure that & Amenity 2008 commenced |implementation of theCar
Council in September 2004 implementation of the Car services 29 December Parking Strategy. Reports
needs to be accelerated, Parking Strategy is closely 2008 have been presented to Area
thereby restricting further loss |monitored and brought to a Committees and there are
of income to the Council. conclusion as soon as also some elements of the
possible. If there are to be implementation process
any changes to the strategy being taken forward by Legal
then this is a decision that Services. Decisions from
will have to be made by the 2009/2010 budget
members of the Council. process.
Reports will have to be
presented to the Local area The Director of Operational
Committees. Services has asked for bi-
monthly updates of this and
any blockages on
implementation to be
emphasised .
8|MATERIAL It has been identified that Legal Services has agreed |Head of Legal & | 31 March 2008 | May 2009 |Provisional orders should be

there are approximately 41 to
50 TPOs outstanding.

with Planning Services that
Legal staff will be directed to
address the backlog of
TPOs, on a prioritised basis
to be agreed with Planning.

Protective
Services and
Head of
Planning

30 November
2008

completed for all areas by
the end of May 2009.

9/ abed



APPENDIX 2

ACTION DATE OF
PLAN GRADE | WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED |  AGREED ACTION  |RESPOMSIBLE| ipLement | REVISED | commENT/EXPLANATION
NUMBER ATION
C - REVIEW OF GENERAL LEDGER OPERATIONS - BANK RECONCILIATIONS
1|MATERIAL There are not always Written reconciliation Head of ICT and | 30 September | 31 March |[Local Tax Bank
adequate written procedure procedures or flowcharts are Financial 2008 2009 Reconciliation: commenced
notes kept by each officer to be prepared for all main Services 31 December writing up notes in
responsible for individual bank [bank accounts ( note: HB & 2008 December and yet to be
reconciliations Income procedures received finalised. Intend to have
- Local Tax and Expenditure completed and notes tested
outstanding). by 31 March 2009.
D - REVIEW OF SCHOOL AND PUBLIC TRANSPORT 2007
3|MATERIAL A review of the Guideline A Paper reviewing the Transportation &| 30 November | 31 May 2009 |Not completed due to
Criteria for Supporting Bus guideline Criteria should be Infrastructure 2007 staffing position and now
Services has not been carried |submitted to the Executive Manger 30 April 2008 further delayed due to
out. Committee as soon as 30 November current tendering round.
possible. 2008
E - REVIEW OF THE PRUDENTIAL CODE
1|IMATERIAL The cost of the Campbeltown |A post completion review of Head of 31 March 2007 | 30 August |Arrangements are being
Community Project is this project is to be carried Strategic 30 September 2009 made to complete the post
significant and there would be |out at the end of 2005/06 Finance 2007 completion review with a
benefit in carrying out a post 30 April 2008 number of other projects.
completion review. 31 December Head of Strategic Finance
2008 has held off arranging this
review until the other
projects were complete.
15|MATERIAL Existing strategy limitations investment strategy Finance 30 June 2006 |30 June 2009 (Scottish Government still to
restricts investment returns. indicators to be reviewed Manager - 31 March 2007 issue Investment
There is an opportunity for upon receipt of new Development | 30 September Regulations.
increased returns at minimum |regulations with the aim of Services 2007
risk increasing returns 30 June 2008

// abed



APPENDIX 2

ACTION DATE OF
PLAN GRADE | WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED AGREED ACTION  |RESPONSIBLE| o) evienT | REVISED | cOMMENT/EXPLANATION
OFFICER DATE
NUMBER ATION
31 December
2008
F- REVIEW OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
1[MATERIAL Operating procedures are to  |This is close to completion Head of 30 June 2008 | 30 June 2009 [The draft risk management

be finalised and issued to as the necessary documents | Democratic 31 October policy statement and
departments this will also offer |have been prepared and will | Services and 2008 strategy has been amended
an operating framework for go to the next RMG for Governance to take account of the

departmental LCGs and
presented to the Audit
Committee for approval.

review and approval.

development of the risk
based approach to the
corporate and Service Plans
and the related Strategic
Risk and Operational Risk
Registers. The draft has
been sent to the Risk
Management Group for
comment and once its terms
are agreed will go to the
SMT and then either the
March or June Audit
committee for approval.

g/ abed



Page 79

¥ 0l 14 [elol
0 ¥ b suoneolddy ® swalsAS ]| JO MaIAeY UOlUIOY | Juelr)
€910 2 0 2 1PNy [euJaiu] - mainay uoneluswajduw| ssaiboid uojuioy| luels
cly/d 4 9 8 Joday Juswabeue|y wislu| - PNy 8002//002 UOIUIOY | JuelD)
6002/800C
[EXYEREY
a0UdpPIND alep 8002 Joqwadag
ualounsu| uoinejuawajduwil L Aq pauoinoe upny
/a|npayos Aq pauoijoe sjuiod aq 0} sjulod
pulyag

V € XIAN3ddV

800z 1equiadaQ O} Jago}d0 Woi4 ang suoepuawilioday YN SHoday Hpny [euloixg

Kiewwing - dn mojjo4 1oday 1PNy [euiaixg




Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81

[eo] |

A

10BIUOD Jawo)sny Janeg ybnoiyl sadialeg Jawojsny buiroidw| puelods 1pny

PaAISJ331 9J0USpPIAd

LTI R
/3INpayas puiyag

ajep uonejuawajduwi
Aq pauonoe sjuiod

800¢ 19quiadag
1€ Aq pauonoe
aq 0} sjuiod

CEEIT )
Hpny
SNOIAdId Woi4
Buipuelsinp
1I1S sjuiod

Hpny

g € XIAN3IddVY

JSIWWO0Y) 1PNy SNOIAdId WoJJ BUIPUBISINQ SIUIog



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4

cg abed

ACTION DATE OF
PLAN GRADE | WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED AGREED ACTION RESPONSEE | MPLEMENT | REVISED | cCOMMENT/EXPLANATION
FFICER DATE
NUMBER ATION
A - AUDIT SCOTLAND IMPROVING CUSTOMER SERVICES THROUGH BETTER CUSTOMER CONTACT
1|MEDIUM Councils needs to committo  |N/A Head of 31 December 31 March  |The Council is about to

actively pursue a programme to Democratic 2005 2009 conclude phase 1 of the

manage customer service Services and 31 August customer service centre roll

improvements as this is central Governance 2007, out and the process for

to effective service delivery. 31 March 2008, change customer

Councils should improve how 30 June 2008, management theme has

they research customers’ 31 October undertaken a customer

opinion on service and make 2008 survey and will be reviewing

better use of feedback. the strategy agreed in

Councils should improve November 2006 in light of

performance measurement. current developments.
Customer Management will
be taken forward to detailed
design as part of the next
phase of Process for
Change.

B - GRANT THORNTON 2007-08 AUDIT - INTERIM MANAGEMENT REPORT
7|HIGH Financial Management and The Council should put in Head of Strategic| 31 December 31 August |Draft recording and reporting
Budgetary Control The Council |place mechanisms to record Finance 2008 2009 arrangements have been

has not yet set out how it will
measure and report efficiency
savings generated and
performance systems are not
yet in place to measure outputs
and outcomes to support the
measurement of efficiency.

efficiency savings generated
from the plan. Progress
against the efficiency savings
target should be reported on

a regular basis to
management and members.

Management Response This
will be addressed

prepared. However, the
Improvement Plan has a
commitment to revise the
Efficiency Plan by May 2009.
This will include revising the
recording and reporting
arrangements and
incorporating the efficiency
plan in Pyramid. This first
report will be at 30 June with
a report to Members in




APPENDIX 4

g abed

ACTION DATE OF
PLAN GRADE | WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED AGREED ACTION RESPONSIBLE | o) EvenT | REVISED | cOMMENT/EXPLANATION
OFFICER DATE
NUMBER ATION
August.
13|MEDIUM Audit Committee Arrangements [The non-Councillor members Head of 31 December | 01 April 2009 |The independent members
There is no annual declaration |of the Audit Committee Democratic 2008 have agreed to make a
of interests for the 2 non- should make a similar annual | Services and voluntary declaration and
Councillor members of the declaration of interest as that | Governance new regime will be in place
Audit Committee required for Councillor from 1st April 2009. The
members. Management voluntary commitment will be
Response Head of reflected in updated
Democratic Services and arrangements for the
Governance and Audit appointment of independent
Committee Chair and Vice persons in the future.
Chair - This requires the
voluntary agreement of both
the Audit Chairman and Vice
Chairman. The Head of
Democratic Services and
Governance will discuss this
matter with both parties.
C - GRANT THORNTON PROGRESS IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW - INTERNAL AUDIT
1|MEDIUM Scope of Internal Audit The The Council Should update Head of 30 April 2008 June 2009 |The Council has now agreed
Council's procedures for the it's 'guidance for staff Democratic a new arrangement for
prevention of fraud and reporting suspected fraud' to Services and planning and it is intended to
corruption are detailed within  |include specific reference to Governance submit a revised constitution

the Financial and Security
Regulations and include
guidance for staff reporting
suspected fraud. The guidance

does not specifically detail the

the role of Internal Audit.
Management Response The
Council Constitution will be
amended to recognise the

role of Internal Audit in the

to the Council in June 2009




APPENDIX 4

ACTION

DATE OF

PLAN GRADE | WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED AGREED ACTION RESPONSIBLE | o) EvenT | REVISED | cOMMENT/EXPLANATION
OFFICER DATE
NUMBER ATION
role of Internal Audit in fraud investigation of suspected
investigations. frauds.
3|MEDIUM Independence The Council The Council should formally [Head of Strategic| 30 April 2008 | 30 April 2009 |The Internal Audit

does not operate with a single

This does not comply with the
Code which recommends the
appointment of a 'Head of
Internal Audit'.

Head of Internal Audit position.

designate a Head of Internal
Audit post. This would raise
the profile of Internal Audit
and would help clarify
reporting lines and
responsibilities within the
department. Management
Response This situation will
be reviewed at the end of the
Internal Audit Partnership.

Finance

Partnership ended on 31
March 2008, and the Council
has now extended the
agreement. The creation of a
'Head of Internal Audit'
position remains under
review.

Gg abed



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87 Agenda Item 9

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 6 MARCH 2009

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008 - 2009

1. SUMMARY

An interim progress report has been prepared covering the audit work
performed by Internal Audit up to 30™ of January 2009. The objective of the
report is to advise members of the progress of the Annual Audit Plan. (See
Appendix 1).

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to approve the progress made with the
Annual Audit Plan for 2008 - 2009.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The progress report contained in Appendix 1 lists the audits scheduled
for the financial year 2008 —2009, and are ordered by section and level of
completion.

3.2 As at 30th of January 2009, of 19 core financial systems audits set out in
the audit plan presented on 27 of March 2008, 12 have been completed.
The remaining 7 audits have been started. Therefore there are no audits
remaining to be started. Action has been taken to assist the delivery of
the audit plan through assigning a total of 4 audits within the annual audit
plan to KPMG UK LLP. Meetings were held last month with KPMG where
the audit scope for 2 core financial audits was discussed and agreed and
these are indicated in Appendix 1.

3.3 Of 15 non-financial audit areas set out in the audit plan of 27 March
2008, 8 have been completed as at the 30" of January 2009. Of the
remaining 7 audits, 6 are currently ongoing and one remains to be
started. KPMG UK LLP has been assigned 2 non financial audits from
within the annual plan. Fifteen direct audit days have been assigned to
each. An adjustment has therefore been made to the direct days
originally assigned to both audits and this is reflected in Appendix 1.

3.4  Atotal of 100 direct audit days were set aside in the annual audit plan
for Special Investigations / Contingency work. As at 30" of January 2009,
one day has been expended. A total of 105 days were set aside in the
audit plan for Other Areas, to date 62 days have been expended.

4, SUMMARY OF AUDIT ACTIVITIES FOR 2008 - 2009

4.1 It can be reported that Internal Audit continues to make progress with the
Annual Audit Plan. Appendix 1 shows that a total of 616 direct audit days



4.2

4.3

4.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Page 88

have been expended on planned audits as at 30" of January 2009. At
the same period in March 2008 a total of 757 direct audit days had been
expended but 3 audits remained to be started.

As noted above current progress with the Internal Audit plan remains
behind the number of days expended in 2007/08 however corrective
action is being taken. It can be reported that all audits bar one are either
complete or ongoing.

The engagement of a contract auditor in October through to December
2008 provided additional assistance to progress the audit plan. At the
beginning of January 2009 another contract auditor was secured
providing additional support up to the end of March 2009.

In addition, as reported to the last Audit Committee interviews for the
post of Trainee Accountant were held in December 2008. A person has
now been appointed as a Trainee Accountant and commenced work with
Internal Audit in January 2009.

CONCLUSION

Progress is being made on audits planned for 2008 — 2009.

IMPLICATIONS

Policy: Update on audit plan for 2008 — 09.

Financial: The ggdit plan is based on budgeted
provision.

Personnel: None

Legal: None

Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604216)12febfinalreportfeb12



Page 89

APPENDIX 1

Assessment of audit days: 2008-2009 strategic plan

AUDIT WORK SCHEDULE Last Risk ranking Original Revised Estimated| Actual Audit Days Balance
audited Estimated Audit| Audit Days 2008- 2008-09
Days 2008-09 09
Core financial systems
Complete
Creditor Payments 2007 2 15 15 9 6
Tendering Procedures 2007 1 15 15 18 -3
Stocktaking/ Work in Progress 2007 2 25 25 18 7
Treasury Management 2007 2 15 15 14 1
Government & European Grants 2007 1 35 35 29 6
Car Allowances 2007 2 15 15 18 -3
Purchasing 2007 2 15 15 13 2
Cash Income and Banking 2007 2 40 40 30 10
Capital Accounting 2007 1 15 15 1 4
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 2007 2 40 40 40 0
Debtor Accounts 2007 2 15 15 14 2
Payments to Voluntary Bodies (Following the Public Pound) 2007 2 15 15 16 -1
Started
General Ledger Operations 2007 2 15 15 8 7
Asset Management 2007 1 40 40 4 36
Budgetary preparation and control - Assigned to KPMG LLP 2007 1 15 15 2 13
Capital Contracts - Assigned to KPMG LLP 2007 1 15 15 2 13
Contract Hire and Operating Leases 2007 2 15 15 1 14
Unified Benefits System 2007 2 40 40 20 20
Payroll 2007 2 40 40 27 13
Section Total 440 440 293 147
Non-financial Audits
Complete
Performance Indicators/Single Outcome Agreement 2007 1 52 52 36 16
Corporate Governance ICS 2007 1 30 30 28 2
Health & Safety - 1 30 30 30 0
Procurement for Fleet 2005 1 30 30 29 1
Procurement Processes for Catering - 2 30 30 34 -4
Recruitment and Retention of Staff 2006 1 20 20 31 -1
Stress Management Exercise - 1 30 30 29 1
New Legislation 2007 1 30 30 26 4
Started
Computer Audit - Assigned to KPMG LLP 2007 2 28 15 2 13
Pre-School Education Provision - 1 30 30 1 29
SW Commissioning & Contracting - 2 30 30 2 29
Parking Income 2007 1 30 30 12 18
Department Risk Plan Testing - Assigned to KPMG LLP - 1 30 15 1 14
Department Business Continuity Plan Testing 2007 1 30 30 1 29
Not Started
Policy & Strategy - Best Value 2006 1 30 30 0 30
Section Total 460 432 260 172
Actual Direct Audit Time 900 872 553 319
Special investigations contingency 100 100 99
Council Wide
Chief Executive's Unit
Community Services 1
Corporate Services
Development Services
Operational Services
Section Total 100 100 1 99
|Other Areas
Follow-up External & Internal Audit Management Letter Points 85 85 52 33
|Risk Assessment, Strategic Plan, Annual Plans 20 20 10 10
|Section Total 105 105 62 43
|TOTAL 1105 1077 616 461




Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91 Agenda ltem 10

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 6 MARCH 2009

ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2009 - 2010

1. SUMMARY

The audit plan for 2009 - 2010 details year 2 of the 3 year Strategic Audit Plan
approved by the Audit Committee on the 27" of March 2008 and ensures that
Internal Audit resources are effectively planned and controlled. The plan outlines
in detail the areas that will be audited in 2009 — 2010. This complies with a good
practice CIPFA guideline to provide additional information to management.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 The Annual Audit Plan for 2009 - 2010 is approved.
3. DETAILS

3.1 Attached is the proposed Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2009 - 2010, which
has been presented to the Strategic Management Team (SMT). It provides
detail as to the proposed time and audits for the coming financial year. The
areas were agreed as part of the overall 3-year audit plan for the years
2008 — 2011.

3.2 This annual plan increases the awareness amongst departments of the
audit objectives for 2009 — 2010, and it is hoped will aid departments with
planning and preparation.

3.3 The annual audit plan has 2 audit categories. They are core and non
financial audits. A table for both categories has been prepared listing each
audit, the date last audited and the number of assigned audit days for 2009
- 2010.

3.4 The annual plan includes a chart showing the audits, their categories, and
when in 2009 — 2010 they are likely to take place. The likely timing and
objectives of the audits were discussed with Heads of Service and line
managers. However, it should be noted that the audits could be subject to
change in content and timing.

4, CONCLUSIONS
The Audit Plan addresses the key areas highlighted in our Audit Needs

Assessment process and will assist the preparation of an annual
assurance statement on the Council’s overall Internal Control Framework.



Page 92

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
5.2  Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None
54 Legal: None
5.5 Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604216)

lan Nisbet

Internal Audit Manager 12 February 2009.
12fedeportfeb12



Page 93

Argyll

ssBute

COUNCIL

Argyll and Bute Council

Annual Audit Plan 2009 - 2010

12" February 2009
Draft for Audit Committee Approval




Page 94



Page 95

INDEX

Page
Foreword 1
Internal Audit Resource Days: 2009-10 1
Table 1 Internal Audit resources 2009 - 2010 2
Assessments of Core Financial Audit Days 2009 - 2010 3
Table 2 Assessment of Audit Days 2009 — 2010 4
Assessment of Non Financial Audit days 2009 - 2010 5
Table 2 Assessment of Audit Days 2009 — 2010 6
Assessment of Contingency Audit Days 2009 - 2010 7

Annual Audit Plan 2009 - 2010 8



Page 96



Page 97

1. Foreword

The audit plan for 2009 - 2010 details year 2 of the 3 year strategic audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee on the 27" of March 2008 and ensures that
Internal Audit resources are effectively planned and controlled. It should be seen as
a flexible management tool, which provides the following:

. A clear view of the workload of the internal audit team;

. A base for assessment of the adequacy and future deployment of internal audit
resources;

. A yardstick against which progress and performance can be measured;
o Authority to act once it is approved by the Audit Committee; and
o A permanent record of the factors considered and judgements made.

The 2009 — 2010 audit plan has been compiled in accordance with the CIPFA Code
of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom (‘the
Code’). This requires the Internal Audit section to provide an objective assessment
of the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control system.
This strategic audit plan also takes into account the Internal Audit Mission Statement
and Terms of Reference both of which have previously been approved by the Audit
Committee. The plan has also been agreed by the Council’s external auditors Grant
Thornton UK LLP

The annual audit plan has 2 categories, core financial and non financial audits.
Within the attached document is a chart showing when in 2009 — 2010 audits are
planned to take place. The timing of audits was discussed with Heads of Service and
line managers. However, the audits could be subject to change and timing should
only be viewed as an indicator.

2. Internal Audit Resource Days 2009 — 2010
There are 3 elements to Table 1:

e Total working days available;
¢ Non-direct audit days; and
e Direct audit days.

After deductions for annual leave and other provisions a total of 1,377 working days
are available for direct and non-direct audit work.

The non-direct audit day allocation covers tasks such as internal audit management,
preparing committee papers, training to ensure that staff are supported in their work
and general administration issues. The total day’s allocated to non-direct audit for
2009 - 2010 is 238.

Direct audit days are days allocated to both core and non-financial audits. The audit
days assigned includes time for Planning, Field Work, Report Writing and
Management Review. In addition a number of days have been included for
Contingency. The total number of days allocated to direct audits for 2009 - 2010 is
1,139, which represents 83% of total working days available.

Page 1



Number of Days in full year
Less: Public Holidays
Annual Leave
Sickness Provision
Working Days Available
Non-Direct Audit Work

IA Management

Planning and
Reporting
Training,
Development &
Internal Audit
Meetings

Advisory

Total for Non-Direct Audit
Support Work

Time Available for
Direct Audit Work

Table 1: Internal Audit Resources 2009 - 2010

Audit Audit Trainee Trainee S:n(ii(.)r Compl.Jter 203.tract Total
Manager Manager Accountant Accountant AssLiIstI;nt Audit uattors
261 261 261 261 261 28 261 1, 594
8 8 8 8 8 - - 40
32 32 32 24 32 - - 152
5 5 5 5 5 - - 25
216 216 216 224 216 28 261 1,377
30 15 - - - - - 45
25 15 - - - - - 40
10 10 35 38 10 - - 103
10 10 6 6 6 - - 38
10 10 - - - - - 20
85 60 41 44 16 - - 246
131 156 175 180 200 28 261 1,131

Page 2

86 abed



Page 99

3. Assessment of Core Financial Audit Days 2009 - 2010

In order to provide an opinion on the Council’s internal controls, Internal Audit is
required to take cognisance of the Council’'s main financial systems and their
support systems. The main financial systems are as follows:

o Payroll Systems;

o Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates;
o Main Accounting Systems;

o Creditor Payments Systems;

o Debtors

o Unified Benefits; and

o Asset Management.

Internal Audit has a responsibility to evaluate and test financial and management
information systems in order to provide an opinion as to the adequacy of control
within the Council. As a result of this work departmental management receive audit
reports with recommendations offering advice to enable rectification of system
weaknesses, improve compliance and control and reduce risk.

Internal Audit in agreement with Grant Thornton UK LLP in 2008 — 2009 adopted the
CIPFA systems based audit (SBA) control matrices. This is a methodology
developed by CIPFA for identifying weaknesses and risks in systems and evaluating
the controls management have established, and for testing the controls to check
they are working effectively in order to provide assurance to management.

The SBA control matrices cover the main fundamental financial systems such as
creditors, debtors, payroll, etc. The adoption of the CIPFA control matrices is helping
the section further develop its quality standards, compliance with the Code and
enabling departments to gain from participating in the audit methodology. The
introduction and use of CIPFA SBAs complements a goal set out in the ‘Corporate
Plan 2007 — 2011 and beyond’ of introducing self assessment tools to strengthen the
drive for continuous improvement.

The core financial audits set out below are those detailed for year 2 of the 3 year
strategic audit plan, and were selected using an Audit Needs Assessment
methodology of risk ranking. These audits will enable Internal Audit over the next
financial year to provide an assurance statement on the Council's overall internal
control framework.

Page 3



Page 100

Table 2 — Assessment of Audit Days: 2009 - 2010

Core financial systems Risk Last 2009-10

ranking | audited
Budgetary preparation and control 1 2008 40
Capital accounting 1 2008 15
Capital contracts 1 2008 15
Cash income and banking 2 2008 15
Car Allowances 2 2008 40
Contract hire and operating leases 2 2008 40
Council tax and non-domestic rates 2 2008 15
Creditor payments 2 2008 40
Debtor accounts 2 2008 15
Purchasing 2 2008 15
Unified benefits system 2 2008 15
Asset management 1 2008 15
General ledger operations 2 2008 15
Government & European Grants 1 2008 35
Payroll 2 2008 15
Treasury management 2 2008 15
Tendering procedures 1 2008 15
Capment o vl e 2 | s | a0
Stock taking / Work in Progress 2 2008 25
Major capital audit 1 2008 -
Subtotal core financial 440
systems

Page 4



Page 101

4. Assessment of Non Financial Audit Days: 2009 — 2010

The Code requires that Internal Audit not only audit financial systems controls but
also other systems of management control used to ensure the Council’s objectives
are being properly managed. That control arrangements have been established and
operate within the Council to ensure that the Council’'s core values are being
addressed.

Internal Audit, in complying with the Code, has prepared this section of the report
incorporating gross high risk areas extracted from the Council Risk Register. These
will be reviewed in order to provide assurance to management that control is extant.
The audit plan has also taken into account the objectives set out in the Council
Corporate Plan. The Council faces internal challenges to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of its operations.

The significance of Information Computer Technology (ICT) for controlling Council
activities and the provision of management information is recognised in the audit
plan. Internal Audit is required to review general ICT controls as well as the Council's
ICT Security Strategy.

The non-financial section of the strategic audit plan also recognises activities that
require to be reviewed on an annual basis. These include corporate governance,
computer audit, risk management, business continuity and statutory performance
indicators. CIPFA has developed a number of systems based audit (SBA) control
matrices for non financial control areas, and these will continue to be adopted in
2009 - 2010.

Discussions have taken place with departmental Heads of Service in order to afford
them the opportunity to identify any specific changes to the planned audit areas, new
developments and offer a proposed time frame for audits. The non financial audits
set out below in Table 3 are those detailed for year 2 of the 3 year strategic audit
plan and have no changes.

Page 5



Page 102

Table 3 — Assessment of Audit Days: 2009 - 2010

Non Financial Audit Areas Risk Last 2009-10
ranking audited

CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Single Outcome Agreement Review 1 - 30

CORPORATE SERVICES

Information Computer Technology (ICT) 2 2008 30

Business Continuity Management 1 2008 30

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Adult Services Assessment & Care

Management Processes 1 B 30

Foster Care Service 2 - 30

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Partnership Project Funding 2 2007 30

OPERATIONAL SERVICES

Payroll processes for catering ] ] 30

Stock control — systems leisure 2 - 30

ALL DEPARTMENTS

Department Risk Plan Testing 1 2008 30

Review of HR Activities 1 2008 20

Computer Audit 2 2008 28

_Il?gst?r:;ment Business Continuity Plan 1 2008 30

New Legislation 1 2008 30

Corporate Governance ICS 1 2008 30

Slttory Pertomancs iactor BEIE

Subtotal non-financial 494

Page 6




Page 103

Assessment of Contingency Audit Days: 2009 - 2010

Audit days have been included within the annual audit plan for contingency.
This is audit time for unforeseen events which, by their nature, cannot be
planned for, e.g.:

o Notification of frauds, significant weaknesses or loss;
o Consideration of controls for new or amended systems; and
o Reviews of significant breakdown of internal control.

Clearly, the extent to which any contingency requirement will arise depends
on the soundness of the Council’s systems of control and the incidence of
fraud or irregularity.

Contingency days 2009-10
Special investigations contingency 100
Fo]low-up external & internal audit management letter 77
points

Risk assessment, strategic plan, annual plans 20
Sub Total 197

Page 7



6. ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2009 - 2010

Risk Last

Core Financial Systems Ranking Audited

Sub Total Non-Financial
Contingency Days Risk Last Audit Days 2009-10
Ranking Audited

Special investigations, Follow-up, Risk Assessment & Audit
Planning n/a n/a 197

Sub Total Contingency Days 197
Total 1,131

Budgetary preparation and control 1 2008 40
Capital accounting 1 2008 15
Capital contracts 1 2008 15
Cash income and banking 2 2008 15
Car allowances 2 2008 40
Contract hire and operating leases 2 2008 40
Council tax & non-domestic rates 2 2008 15 _
Creditor payments 2 2008 40
Debtor accounts 2 2008 15
Purchasing 2 2008 15
Unified Benefits System 2 2008 15
Asset Management 1 2008 15
General ledger operations 2 2008 15
Government & European Grants 1 2008 35 _
Payroll 2 2008 15
Treasury Management 2 2008 15
Tendering Procedures 1 2008 15
Payments to Voluntary Bodies (Public Pound) 2 2008 40 [ > < |
Stocktakin 2 2008 25

btotal Core ancia e 440

0 ancial Aud - A ol A . od Audit Da 009-10 Ap

Chief Executives Unit — Single Outcome Agreement Review 1 - 30
Community Services — Foster Care Services 2 - 30
Community Services — Adult Services Assessment and Care 30
Management Processes 1 -
Corporate Services - ICT - Applications 2 2008 28
Corporate Services - Business Continuity Planning 1 - 30
Development Services — Partnership Project Funding 3 2007 30
Operational Services — Payroll Processes for Catering 1 - 30 _
Operational Services — Stock Control Systems Leisure 2 - 30
All Depts — Risk Plan Testing 1 2008 30
All Depts — Review of HR Activities 1 2008 20
All Depts — Computer Audit 2 2008 30
All Depts — Business Continuity Plan Testing 1 2008 30
All Depts — New Legislation 1 2008 30 |
Corporate Governance ICS 1 2008 30 _
Statutory Performance Indicators/Single Agreement Outcomes 1 2008 86 _

Audit Days 2009-10 April ‘ May ‘ June ‘ July ‘August

September

October

November,

December

NELUETRY

February

March

»

<

Page 8

0| abed



Page 105 Agenda ltem 11

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S UNIT 6 MARCH 2009

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTS

1 SUMMARY
This paper provides a summary of the Service quarterly reports for the
period October to December 2008, consisting of the exceptional
performance sections only.

In line with the Council’s new Planning and Performance Management
Framework (PPMF), future reports will be via performance scorecards.
Training will be available in performance management and the use of
performance scorecards.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Audit Committee notes the Service
performance in the report.

3 DETAIL

Service Plans include a level of detail for each Priority, essentially the third
tier management level across the Council. Where a Periority is reported as
performing above or below the planned level, this performance may be
evaluated as exceptional.

The selection of performance included as exceptional relies on the report
provided by Services. It is this exceptional performance that is included
here. Where explanations for exceptional performance have been
provided by Services they are repeated here.

The full quarterly reports are available from the Performance Manager in
the Policy and Strategy Team.

For further information contact:

David Clements,

Performance Manager,

Policy and Strategy.

Telephone 01546 604205

Email: david.clements@argyll-bute.gov.uk




Page 106

Argyll and Bute Council
Extracts from Quarterly Performance Reports Oct-Dec 2008

This paper draws together the exception reports from the quarterly Service
performance reports for the third quarter 2008/09. Exception reports are those areas of
service delivery that the Head of Service considers ahead (v') or behind (%) the
planned level of service. Where no exceptional performance has been reported, the
level of service is generally as planned.

Chief Executive’s Unit
Communications — no exception reports

Strategic HR
x  Attendance monitoring reports delayed due to new, unclear external requirements

and definitions
x  Delays with e-learning and HR Strategy due to vacant post

Policy and Strategy

x Proactive work is still suffering due to pressures on the small team. This period effort
has been directed to the Corporate Plan, Service Plans and the Single Outcome
Agreement.

x The Third Sector Steering Group (TSSG) has not produced acceptable proposals for
Fairer Scotland Funding.

Strategic Finance — no exception reports

Community Services

Adult Social Work

x Unallocated cases reported as (a) Occupational Therapy = 103 (ii) other adult
services = 38

x Number of people waiting longer than 6 weeks for assessment = 99 (target met for
55.4% of clients)

x  55% of council residential care home staff (people aged 65+) hold appropriate
qualifications for the level of post held

Children and Families
x  55% of council residential children’s home care staff hold appropriate qualifications
for the level of post held

Community Regeneration - no exception reports

Planning and Performance

v Increases in Library use — young people, housebound users and community groups

x 10%-20% non-attendance at training courses as staff are ‘unable to be released’ or
‘due to staff shortages’

Education — no exception reports

Corporate Services

ICT and Financial Services
v The percentage of Council Tax payments made by Direct Debit has risen to over
75% against a target of 60%




Page 107

x The number of new Benefit claims outstanding longer than 50 days stands at over
33% against a target of 9% - contributing to the overall poor and declining performance
of Benefits Administration

x New benefit claims and changes to circumstances have generally been slower than
planned (new claims target=28 days actual=41 days)

xAudit of sample cases found to have been calculated correctly = 76%

Legal and Protective Services

x  The percentage of ‘approved premises’ inspected was 82% against a target of
100%.

x No performance measures have been developed for animal health and welfare

Democratic Services and Governance
x A reported error rate of ‘80% correct’ in Lochgilphead Area Office (Argyll and Bute
overall cash collections £1.18m)

Development Services
Transportation and Infrastructure - no exception reports

Planning
v There has been continued overall improvement in the response times for building

warrants, planning applications and completion certificates
x Reductions in income are being experienced due to reduced applications

Operational Services

Roads and Amenity Services

v The report from this Service is a Pyramid printout. At the last report, the Head of
Service had committed to re-vitalise the Pyramid data - this has been completed.

x Roads maintenance has been less than half the planned level...the Scottish Road
Maintenance Condition Survey identified 16% of roads in need of maintenance
against a target of 10%

Facility Services

« The Performance Management team has been developing scorecards with this
Service over the past few months. The information in Pyramid will be more focused
and interpretable than this 24 page printed report.

Verbatim extracts from the submitted report...

x Education budget has been reduced to reflect NPDO new schools coming on
stream, however the remaining properties which have not either been demolished or
sold still require Statutory Maintenance servicing to ensure compliance with the
Councils Insurers, this was not budgeted for and has put pressure on overall
Education budget.

x Education budget has been substantially reduced to reflect NPDO new schools
coming on stream, this has resulted in a negative budget for Planned Maintenance,
Community Services have instructed a moratorium on spend for any repair not
deemed to have a high risk under Health and Safety. This level of funding could
result in either;

1. Year end budget overspend or,

2. Potential school/building closure.
It will also put pressure on head teachers and Property staff to continuously
review the risks and over compensate by treating repairs as Emergency
Maintenance.




Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109 Agenda ltem 13

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Audit Committee
CORPORATE SERVICES 6 March 2008

Risk Management and Business Continuity Strategy

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Governance and Risk Manager has been instructed to provide
an updated report on the progress being made with the
implementation of the Council’s Risk Management and Business
Continuity Strategy.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Committee note the terms of this report.
3. DETAIL

3.1 Risk Registers

As part of the development of the risk based approach to the
Corporate Plan there has been a review of the Strategic Risk
Register by each of the Services. The purpose of the review was
to ensure that there is a better alignment of the Corporate
Objectives and the Risks which might impact on the ability of the
Council to deliver these objectives.

The current version of the Strategic Risk Register was included as
part of the information available to members for consideration as
part of the budget process.

The Strategic Risk Register can now be viewed in the
Development area within Pyramid and the links to the Operational
Risk Register for Democratic Services and Governance have been
put into Pyramid as a pilot project. This will allow a review off the
links and the information to be included in Pyramid to be
undertaken.

The Services are now undergoing the process of developing
Operational Risk Registers which take account of the risks
identified in the Service Plans, the risks which have been identified
as ‘All Services’ risks or identified as being specific to them in the
Strategic Risk Register. The Operational Risk Registers are due to
be completed by the end of the first quarter of 2009/10.

The Operational Risk Registers will then be put into Pyramid.



3.2

Page 110

Business Continuity

The exercise which will test the Business Continuity Incident
Management Plan, the Emergency Planning Generic Plan and
some of the Departmental Recovery Plans, has been arranged for
Wednesday 11 March 2008. This will take place in Kilmory and will
be hosted by Glen Abbot.

A review of the Departmental Recovery Plans will be carried out
before the end of March 2009.

lain Jackson
Governance and Risk Manager
01546 604188



Page 111 Agenda ltem 14

Argyll and Bute Council
Audit Plan 2008-09
January 2009



Page 112

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

AUDIT PLAN 2008 - 2009
CONTENTS

PAGE
1 Introduction 1
2 Financial Statements 2
3 Governance 6
4 Performance 9
5 Grant claims 12
6 audit team and fees 14

Appendix I : Summary of Planned Audit Reports and Outputs 2007-2008

Appendix II : Planned Reliance on Internal Audit

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
January 2009



Page 113

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan

Introduction

1.1

INTRODUCTION

Grant Thornton UK LLP has been appointed by the Accounts Commission for Scotland as

the external auditor of Argyll and Bute Council (the Council) for the five year period

commencing 2006-07. This Plan outlines how we will approach the audit of the Council in
the third year of our appointment, and reflects our statutory duties and risk based approach.

1.2 Specific duties for external auditors are contained principally in the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973, the Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in the audit engagement
letter issued to auditors by Audit Scotland. These include undertaking the audit in
accordance with relevant legislation and Statements of International Auditing Standards
and applicable Practice Notes issued by the Auditing Practices Board.

1.3 In accordance with the Code we have the following audit objectives:

Exhibit 1: Audit Objectives

Area

Audit Objectives

Financial statements

To provide an opinion on the Council’s financial statements for the
year ending 31 March 2009. Further details are provided in section
2.

Governance

To review and report on the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements, including: systems of internal control, arrangements
for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption, standards
of conduct and the Council’s financial position. Further details are
provided in section 3.

Performance

To review and report on the Council’s arrangements to achieve Best
Value, other aspects of arrangements to manage performance as they
relate to economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources and arrangements for preparing and publishing statutory
performance indicators. Auditors’ responsibilities in relation to Best
Value are primarily discharged by Audit Scotland. Further details
are provided in section 4.

Grant Claims

To provide an independent auditor’s report on specified grant claims
in accordance with Audit Scotland guidelines. Further details are
provided in section 5.

1.4 In planning and carrying out the audit we will have due regard to the Statement of
Responsibilities, issued by Audit Scotland, which sets out the respective roles and
responsibilities of the Council and its auditors.

1.5 The Code requires us to take a risk based approach and our risk assessment, together with
planned audit outputs, in relation to each of the above areas is summarised in the following
sections of this plan. We will keep our initial risk assessments under review and discuss
any significant changes to the nature and scope of our audit with you.

1.6 We set out in Section 6 details of our audit team and our proposed fee, based on our
responsibilities and risk assessment. A summary of planned audit outputs and reports for
the 2008-09 audit is contained at Appendix I.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

January 2009

Page 1



Page 114

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan

Financial Statements

2 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
2.1 The Council’s financial statements are an essential means by which it accounts for the

stewardship of resources and its financial performance in the use of those resources. It is the
responsibility of the Council to:

il

ii

ensure the regularity of transactions by putting in place systems of internal control
to ensure that financial transactions are in accordance with the appropriate
authority;

maintain proper accounting records; and
prepare financial statements which present fairly the financial position of the

Council and its expenditure and income in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended of Practice (SORP).

2.2 The auditor is required to audit the financial statements and to give an opinion as to:

ii

iii

Overall Approach

whether they present fairly the financial position of the Council and its
expenditure and income for the period in question;

whether they have been prepared properly in accordance with relevant legislation,
applicable accounting standards and other reporting requirements; and

whether the Statement on Internal Control has been presented in accordance with
relevant requirements and to report if it does not meet these requirements, or if the
statement is misleading or inconsistent with our knowledge.

2.3 In order to gain sufficient assurance to support our opinion on the financial statements, we
will carry out a review of:

ii

iii

internal audit, to determine the extent of reliance we can place on it for the
purposes of our audit (Appendix B summarises the areas of internal audit work
we plan to place reliance on);

the internal control framework for key financial systems;

review of computerised controls operating across major IT systems;

v the materiality of balances and transactions impacting on the financial statements;
v the key risks relevant to the preparation and audit of the financial statements; and
vi the Council’s arrangements for the preparation of its financial statements and for
the Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack.
© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 2

January 2009



Page 115

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Financial Statements

Risk Assessment and Audit Response

24 Our audit work is risk based and proportionate. On the basis of our preliminary work to

date, we have identified the following audit risks in relation to the financial statements aspect

of our audit:

Exhibit 2: Financial Statements Audit Risk Assessment

Key risk area

Our response

2008 SORP and International Financial
Reporting Standards

Local government bodies will be required to
prepare their accounts on the basis of IFRS
from 2010-11, with shadow IFRS-based
accounts required for 2009-10.

HM Treasury will require local authorities to
restate PFI or PPP schemes under IFRS for the
2008-09 Whole of Government Accounts
Return.

The transition to IFRS is complex, and will
detailed project planning to ensure the Council
is able to fully implement the standard in line
with the planned timetable.

We will discuss the implications of the
changes required under IFRS at an early stage
in the audit process and review the adequacy
of the Council's IFRS project plan as part of
our 2008-09 audit.

A joint Council/Grant Thornton workshop
covering the 2008-09 SORP and accounts
closedown and audit arrangements will take
place on 5 February 20009.

The Council has already started work on
reviewing its PPP/PFI schemes and we plan to
review this work for reliance.

Specific Accounting Issues

The following specific accounting issues were
identified at the conclusion of the 2007-08
audit:

=  compliance with the 2007 SORP in
reporting the results of third party trading
in the Income and Expenditure Account

=  compliance with the 2007 SORP in
charging depreciation on surplus assets

We will meet with the Finance Team early in
the audit year to identify the Council’s
proposals for addressing these issues in the
2008-09 financial statements.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
January 2009

Page 3




Page 116

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Financial Statements

Key risk area

Our response

Reserves & Balances

At 31 March 2008, the Council held
unearmarked general fund reserves of £4.9
million, which represents 2.3% of net operating
expenditure for 2007-08.

For 2008-09, the target level of unearmarked
reserves will be reduced to 1.5% of net operating
expenditure. It is unlikely that this revised target
will be met due to cost pressures on the Council
during the year.

In November 2008, CIPFA published LAAP
Bulletin 77, Local Authority Reserves and
Balances which gives guidance on maintaining
adequate reserves.

We will follow up the Council's progress in
implementing agreed recommendations to
improve financial planning and budgetary
control arrangements.

Specific internal control issues

The following weaknesses in internal control
were identified at the conclusion of the 2007-
08 audit:

. ensuring bank reconciliations are
prepared and reviewed in a timely
manner

. identifying and closing down any
dormant bank accounts

] improving management of
outstanding debtor accounts

. improving documentation of loan and

investment decisions

We will follow up the progress of agreed audit
action points in our 2008-09 audit and report on
the progress of implementation.

Audit Timetable and Planned Audit Outputs

2.5

The planned outputs from our financial statements audit, and the proposed dates for the

fieldwork, are summarised in Exhibit 3 below:

Exhibit 3: Audit Timetable and Planned Outputs

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
January 2009

Page 4




Page 117

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Financial Statements

Audit Output — Financial Statements Fieldwork Target Delivery
Date (Final Report)
Interim Report February — April 2009 30 June 2009
Accounts Report (ISA 260) July — September 2009 early September 2009
© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 5

January 2009




Page 118

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan

Governance

3

GOVERNANCE

Introduction

3.1

Corporate governance is concerned with structures and processes for decision-making,
accountability, control and behaviour at the upper levels of the organisation. The Council is
responsible for putting in place arrangements for the conduct of its affairs, including
compliance with applicable guidance, ensuring the legality of activities and transactions and
monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements in practice. The Council’s
Audit Committee should have a role in monitoring these arrangements.

3.2 Commensurate with the wider scope of a public sector audit, the Code gives the auditor a
responsibility to review and, where appropriate, report findings on the Council’s corporate
governance arrangements as they relate to:

1 the Council’s review of its systems of internal control, including its reporting
arrangements;

ii the prevention and detection of fraud and irregularity'

ii standards of conduct, and arrangements in relation to the prevention and detection
of corruption; and

iv the financial position of the Council.

Overall Approach

3.3 We will assess the adequacy of the Council’s governance arrangements by:

i reviewing the Council’s overall arrangements in relation to each of the above
areas;

ii reviewing the extent of compliance with the ‘Code of Practice for Internal Audit
in Local Government’; and

ii evaluating the Council’s approach to risk management, including arrangements to
address the key risks identified in this section of the audit plan.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 6

January 2009



Page 119

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Governance

Risk Assessment and Audit Response

34 On the basis of our preliminary work to date, we have identified the following audit risks in
relation to the governance aspect of our audit:

Exhibit 4: Governance Audit Risk Assessment

Key risk area

Our response

Political Governance and Scrutiny

The Audit Committee represents the main body
for reviewing the effectiveness of the Council's
governance, internal control and risk
management arrangements and is, therefore, a
key part of the Council's scrutiny framework.

The Council increasingly works in partnerships
with a range of organisations to achieve its
corporate goals and objectives. These more
complex service delivery arrangements increase
the risk that current scrutiny arrangements may
not be effective.

We will follow up the Council's progress in
implementing the agreed recommendations form
our 2007-08 audit of the Council's audit
committee arrangements.

National Fraud Initiative

There is scope to better utilise the information
emerging from the National Fraud Initiative
(NFI) on an ongoing basis to assist in the
detection of fraud.

We will review the use made by the Council of
the output of the NFI exercise including benefits,
payroll and other data.

Contract Management

The Council spends significant sums annually
on its capital programme and needs effective
contract management arrangements.

In 2007-08, we carried out a review of the main
aspects of contract management and found
weaknesses in the Council's contract
management arrangements, particularly in
relation to the management of the Argyll Air
Services Project.

We will follow up the Council's progress in
implementing the agreed recommendations from
our 2007-08 report on contract management.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
January 2009

Page 7




Page 120

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Governance

Key risk area

Our response

Internal Audit

The Council’s internal audit section is a key part
of the Council’s governance arrangements. If
internal audit is to be effective, it must be
independent, properly resourced and comply
with relevant best practice in planning and
undertaking its work.

The Council has not yet finalised plans for the
appointment of a Head of Internal Audit.

We will follow up the Council's progress in
implementing the agreed recommendations from
our 2006-07 report on Internal Audit.

Audit Timetable and Planned Audit Outputs

3.5 The planned outputs from our governance audit, and the proposed dates for the fieldwork,

are summarised in Exhibit 5 below:

Exhibit 5: Audit Timetable and Planned Outputs

Audit Output — Governance Audit Fieldwork Target Delivery Date
(Final Report)
Interim Report March - April 2009 30 June 2009
Fraud Returns to Audit Scotland Ongoing 30 May 2009
© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 8

January 2009




Page 121

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan

Performance

4

PERFORMANCE

Introduction

4.1

4.2

4.3

The Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 introduced statutory duties relating to Best
Value and Community Planning. The scope of Best Value and Community Planning is very
broad but in general terms a successful council will:

1 work with its partners to identify a clear set of priorities that respond to the needs
of the community in both the short and the longer term;

ii be organised to deliver those priorities;
iii meet and clearly demonstrate that it is meeting the community's needs; and
iv operate in a way that drives continuous improvement in all its activities.

It is the responsibility of the audited body to ensure that these matters are accorded the
appropriate priority and resources, and that proper procedures are established and operate
satisfactorily. Achievement of value for money by the Council depends on the existence of
sound management arrangements in relation to its services, including procedures for
planning, appraisal, authorisation and control, accountability and evaluation of the use of
resources.

The wider dimension of public sector audit requires that the audit process give consideration
to the way in which the Council secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
its resources.

Audit Approach

4.4

We will assess the adequacy of the Council’s arrangements for performance management
and the achievement of Best Value by:

i undertaking a follow up review of the Council’s progress in addressing the key
findings emerging from the recent Best Value report;

ii reviewing the Council’s arrangements for identifying, measuring and reporting
efficiency savings under the efficient government agenda;

1ii assessing the Council’s progress in implementing an effective performance
management system; and

v evaluating the effectiveness of management arrangements for reporting
performance through statutory performance indicators. We will place reliance on
internal audit to confirm the accuracy of data reported.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 9

January 2009



Page 122

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Performance

Risk Assessment and Audit Response

4.5 On the basis of our preliminary work to date, we have identified the following audit risks in

relation to the governance aspect of our audit:

Exhibit 6: Performance Audit Risk Assessment

Key risk area

Our response

Best Value

The Accounts Commission published its follow
up report on the Best Value assessment of the
Council in December 2008. The key finding
from this review was that the Council should
focus on turning strategies into action to embed
best value principles throughout the
organisation.

We will assess the Council's progress in
achieving its Improvement Plan as part of our
follow-up of progress in implementing the key
recommendations emerging from our 2007-08
best value audit.

Statutory Performance Indicators

The Council is required to prepare statutory
performance indicators (SPIs) in accordance
with a direction issued annually by the
Accounts Commission. We audit these
indicators to ensure they are prepared in
accordance with the guidance. SPIs continue
to represent the main source of performance
information for the Council.

We will review the Council’s arrangements for
compiling and reporting SPI information in
accordance with the Direction issued annually
by Audit Scotland.

Efficient Government

The Council continues to face significant
challenges in refocusing its resources on
service delivery. Good progress has been made
in a number of areas, however, significant
effort will be required to deliver the level of
efficiencies required while continuing to
improve performance.

We will review the Council’s arrangements for
identifying, measuring and reporting efficiency
savings under the efficient government agenda.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
January 2009

Page 10




Page 123

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Performance

Audit Timetable and Planned Audit Outputs

4.6 The planned outputs from our performance audit, and the proposed dates for the fieldwork,

are summarised in Exhibit 7 below:

Exhibit 7: Audit Timetable and Planned Outputs

Audit Qutput — Performance Audit Fieldwork Target Delivery
Date
(Final Report)
Best Value Progress Report September 2009 30 October 2009
Statutory Performance Indicators — Audit August 2009 30 August 2009
Scotland Return
© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 11

January 2009




Page 124

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Performance

5 GRANT CLAIMS

Introduction

5.1 We will audit the grant claims notified to us by the Council at the start of the audit, and
authorised for audit by Audit Scotland, which are:

i housing and council tax benefits;
i education maintenance allowances; and
iii non-domestic rates.
Overall Approach
5.2 Audit Scotland issue guidance to auditors on the audit of grant claims authorised for audit in

agreement with the Scottish Executive. Audit Scotland’s guidance determines the extent of
audit testing required for each specific grant claim.

53 In order to gain sufficient assurance to support our opinion on each grant claim, we are
required to carry out reviews of:

1 the Council’s arrangements for the preparation of each claim submitted for audit;
ii internal audit to determine the extent of reliance we can place on it for the
purposes of our audit (Appendix II summarises the areas of internal audit work

we plan to rely on);

iii the effectiveness of the internal control framework for key financial systems
relevant to each grant claim;

v the materiality of balances and transactions impacting on each grant claim; and
v the key risks relevant to the preparation and audit of each grant claim.
54 Additional grant claims submitted for audit not listed above will be audited in agreement

with Audit Scotland and subject to additional fee arrangements in negotiation with the
Council.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 12
January 2009



Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Performance

Page 125

5.5 Exhibit 8 below lists the claims we expect to receive for audit, the deadlines for submission
to external audit and the certification deadline.

Exhibit 8: Grant Claims due for Audit

Grant Claims Submission to Certification
External Audit Deadline
Deadline
Housing and Council Tax Benefits 31 May 2009 30 November 2009
Education Maintenance Allowances 30 June 2009 31 July 2009
Non-domestic Rates 30 September 2009 February 2010
© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 13

January 2009




Page 126

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan
Performance

6 AUDIT TEAM AND FEES

The Audit Team

Exhibit 9: Key Members of the Audit Team

Role Experience

Sarah Howard
Engagement Partner

Email: sarah.howard @ gtuk.com Overall responsibility for delivery of the audit.
Tel: 07831 564148

Gary Devlin
Client Service Manager

Email: gary.devlin @ gtuk.com Responsible for day to day management of the audit.
Tel: 0131 659 8554

Stephen Vallely
Assistant Manager

Email: stephen.vallely @ gtuk.com Responsible for managing the onsite fieldwork.
Tel: 0131 659 8572

Paul Spinks

Senior Technical Manager

Email: paul.spinks @ gtuk.com Responsible for providing specialist technical input to the
Tel: 07798 831962 financial statements audit, including advising on the

implementation of the 2008 SORP and IFRS.

Raul Rodrigeuz
Technology and Risk Services
Email: raul.rodrigeuz @ gtuk.com Responsible for managing the audit of IT systems and
Tel: 0131 659 8534 applications
6.1 We are not aware of any relationships that may bear on the independence and objectivity of

the team which are required to be disclosed under Auditing Standards.

6.2 The core audit team will call on other specialist and support staff, as necessary, during the
course of the audit.

6.3 If at any time you wish to discuss how our services may be improved or if you are in any
way dissatisfied with the audit service you are receiving please contact Sarah Howard or
Richard Tremeer, our National Head of Government Audit Services
(richard.tremeer @ gtuk.com, 020 7728 3440).

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 14
January 2009




Page 127

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan

Performance

The Audit Fee

6.4

6.5

6.6

Our audit fee is calculated in accordance with the guidance issued by Audit Scotland for
determining the fee level for local government bodies. The fee is based on our professional
assessment of the level of audit risk associated with a particular body. Audit Scotland
requires that the agreed fee for the audit is set within the limits of the indicative fee range.
Placement within the range depends on the level of work we consider necessary to perform
the audit and is influenced by the number and level of risks facing the Council. In addition
to the fee for the audit, Audit Scotland charges a fixed central overhead fee to meet its
central running costs.

For our 2008-09 audit, we are proposing a modest increase of 3% on the 2007-08 fee level.
The fee includes:

i all of the work and outputs described in this plan, including additional work
associated with the audit of IFRS compliance for whole of government accounts;

ii attendance at audit committees and other meetings;

ii access to advice and information on relevant audit issues;
iv access to workshops/seminars on topical issues; and

v all travel and subsistence costs.

The table below shows the proposed audit fee, plus Audit Scotland’s fixed charge for the
year ending 31 March 2009. Audit Scotland has also indicated that it will pay a rebate to
charge payers in 2008-09, following a decision to reduce its level of reserves. The rebate for
Argyll and Bute Council has been set at £15,800 resulting in an overall reduction in the audit
fee of £5,100 (1.7%) from 2007-08 levels as reflected in the table below:

Exhibit 10: Proposed Fee

Area 2008-09 2007-08 % Change
Proposed Grant Thornton fee 210,100 204,000 +3%
Audit Scotland fixed charge 93,800 89,200 +5.2%
Audit Scotland rebate (15,800) - -
Total 288,100 293,200 -1.7%
Audit fees are inclusive of VAT and expenses.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 15

January 2009




Page 128

Argyll and Bute Council - 2008-09 Audit Plan

Performance

6.7

6.8

Our fee is based on a number of assumptions, in particular:

1 an effective and smooth closedown and audit of the accounts, in accordance with
an agreed timetable, together with availability of working papers at the
commencement of the audit in accordance with our client working paper request
list; and

i the completion by internal audit of reviews of the areas set out in Appendix II.
Where we are required to undertake additional work not outlined in this plan, any work

directed by Audit Scotland, and grant claims not listed in Section 5, we will agree an
additional fee with the Council in advance.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. Page 16

January 2009



Page 129

APPENDIX 1
Summary of Planned Audit Reports and Outputs
Audit Area Target Delivery
Date (Final Report)
Financial Statements Audit
Interim Report 30 June 2009

Accounts Report (ISA 260)

early September

Education Maintenance Allowances

2009
Governance Audit
Interim Report 30 June 2009
Performance Audit
Best Value — follow up review 30 October 2009
Statutory Performance Indicators — Audit Scotland Return 30 August 2008
Grant Claims Audit
Housing and Council Tax Benefits 30 November 2009

31 July 2009

Non-domestic Rates 8 February 2010

Overall Audit

Annual report to Members and the Accounts Commission 30 September 2009
Status of our Reports to the Council

6.9 Our reports are prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and

Audited Bodies issued by Audit Scotland. Reports are addressed to Members or officers and
are prepared for the sole use of the audited body, and no responsibility is taken by auditors to
any Member or officer in their individual capacity, or to any third party.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
8 January 2008



Page 130

APPENDIX II

RELIANCE ON INTERNAL AUDIT

Auditing standards require internal and external auditors to work closely together to make
optimal use of available audit resources. We seek to rely on the work of internal audit
wherever possible and as part of our planning process, we carry out an annual assessment of
the internal audit function.

The Council operates with a small internal audit section which has undergone a period of
significant change in recent years. We will review the work of internal audit to determine
the extent of reliance we can place on it for the purposes of our audit. This avoids
unnecessary duplication of audit work, and minimises any disruption to the Council caused
by the audit process.

Based on a review of the internal audit plan for 2008-09, we will plan to place reliance on
the work of internal audit in the following areas:

. IT audit, including reviews of data protection and information security
. Political governance

" Corporate procurement

. Budget monitoring

= Grant claim reviews

. National Fraud Initiative

. Statutory Performance Indicator
. Council tax

. Debtors

. Asset management

. Payroll

= Risk management.

© Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
8 January 2008



Page 131 Agenda ltem 15

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 6 March 2009

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2008-09

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report advises the Audit Committee on the plans in place for
financial year end 31 March 2009 and the preparation of the Council’s
Financial Statements for 2008-09.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 To note that plans are in place to prepare the Councils annual
accounts, consistent with the Accounting Code of Practice and submit
them to Council prior to 30 June 2009 in line with the Scottish
Government’s requirements.

3 DETAIL

3.1 “An Audit Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities” has
been issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA). This suggests that Audit Committees should
have an overview of the plans made for preparation of the council’s
annual accounts.

3.2 A set of instructions for the end of the financial year have been drafted.
These cover year-end close down of the council’s financial systems and
the preparation of a set of accounts in line with professional and
legislative requirements.

3.3 The project plan included with the instructions is detailed and includes
the following milestones:

e Capital expenditure, capital charges and treasury management
revenue accounts completed by 12 May.

e Revenue expenditure, creditors, debtors, accruals and
prepayments completed by 30 April.

e Council Tax and NDR entries completed by 13 May

e Review and adjustments to ledger and central department cost
allocations completed by 15 May.

e Preparation of unaudited single entity financial statements
including report by Head of Strategic Finance by 12 June.

e Unaudited single entity financial statements considered by a
meeting of the Full Council on 25 June. If the Group Accounts
are ready by the Full Council Meeting they will also be
considered by Members at this point in time.



3.4

3.5

3.5

Page 132

e Submission of Unaudited Financial Statements to Accounts
Commission by the statutory deadline of 30 June 2009.

The plans are in line with previous years. Previously external Audit has
been satisfied with the quality of working papers and general
arrangements for preparation of the financial statements. The plan
should result in Financial Statements prepared by the required deadline
of 30 June 2009 and with supporting documentation of a standard to
enable completion of the audit by the required deadline of 30
September 2009.

This year there are a limited number of technical changes arising from
the 2008 SORP. Planning and preparation for the full implementation of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) into the public sector
is already underway. Work in the area of accounting for PFI/PPP
projects and leases will run alongside the preparation and audit of the
2008/09 financial statements. Restated opening balance sheets at 1
April 2009, on an IFRS basis, will have to be prepared and submitted by
the end of 2009.

Copies of both sets of instructions / timetables are available from Head
of Strategic Finance if required.

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance
25 February 2009



	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 AUDIT COMMITTEE - SELF ASSESSMENT EXERCISE
	B NEW AUDIT COMMITTEE AWAY DAY

	5 AUDIT COMMITTEE - DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE
	Microsoft Word - Audit Committee New TOR doc, 20/02/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee

	6 INTERNAL REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008 - 2009
	Final Report Corporate Governance, 20/02/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee
	Microsoft Word - FinalReportCatering and Procurement, 20/02/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee

	7 AUDIT SCOTLAND NATIONAL REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008 - 2009
	B Priorities and Risk Framework, 20/02/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee
	image

	8 EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP 2008 - 2009
	Ext & Int appendix 1a
	Ext & Int appendix 1b
	Appendix 2 Action Points behind schedule - Internal Audit (Committee Report)
	Ext & Int appendix 3a
	Ext & Int appendix 3b
	Appendix 4 Action points behind schedule - External Audit (Committee Report)

	9 PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008 - 2009
	B Progress Report 08_09, 20/02/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee

	10 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2009 - 2010
	A Final Annual Audit Plan 2009 - 2010 (2), 20/02/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee

	11 SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTS
	13 RISK MANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY STRATEGY
	14 AUDIT PLAN 2008/2009
	15 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2008 - 2009 (IFRS REPORT)

